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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 I-800.S52-3345 Ext 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

August 31. 2023

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source contract with Community Action Program Belknap - Merrimack
Counties. Inc. (VC# 177203) Concord, NH. in the amount of $558,759 for the provision of a
housing services continuum of care project, with the option to renew for up to three (3) additional
years, effective October 1, 2023, upon Governor and Council approval, through September 30,
2026.100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025 and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER
PROGRAM

State Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Total

Amount

2024 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $139,690

2025 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $186,253

2026 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $186,253

2027 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $46,563

Total $558,759

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because federal regulations require all procurement efforts
to be directed by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) which requires
the Department to specify the vendor's name during the annual, federal. Continuum of Care (CoC)
competitive application process for up to a year prior to the grant award being issued. As the
Collaborative Applicant, the Department is required to issue a Request for Proposals, through the
Continuum, based on the HUD CoC Program Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO). HUD
reviews and scores vendor applications based on federal rank and review policy, and scoring
tools, created to match the federal NOFO. HUD subsequently awards funding based on strict
federal criteria specifying eligible activities, populations to be served, expected performance
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outcomes, and time frames for the application competition and subsequent Departmental
agreements, the Department receives notification of the awards and signed grant agreements
from HUD several months later; at which time agreements, such as the one contained in this
request, can be executed.

A total of approximately 50 to 150 participants will be served annually through this Rural
Supportive Services Only - Street Outreach project (RSSO-SO).

Using the federally required Housing First model, the Contractor will provide a housing
services continuum of care project that includes a rural supportive services program that provides
housing first, housing focused, street outreach and case management activities to unsheltered
persons located in a county designated as rural by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD). Program staff regularly visit homeless encampments, drop-in centers,
kitchens and other unsheltered locations to connect and follow up with unsheltered participants
on client identified needs and to develop participant's permanent housing goals. RSSO-SO
includes the provision of evidenced based practices, referrals and assistance to mainstream
resources including mental health, primary care services, substance use treatment, income
supports and housing services including assistance yvith the resolution of barriers to housing.

The Department will monitor services by reviewing annual reports provided by the
Contractor and conducting annual reviews related to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual agreements. '

■ As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions of the attached
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up three (3) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer supportive
services available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families experiencing homelessness in
unsafe situations without needed support. Additionally, the Department will be out of cornpliance
with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of federal funding for these and other types
of permanent housing and supportive service programs.

Area served: Belknap and Merrimack Counties.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance . Listing Number #14.267, FAIN
#NH0152R1T002200.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer availa\)le. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

7%e Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)
Subject: Continuum of Care, Rural Supportive Services Only - Street Outreach, CAPBM (SS-2024-DBH-21-RURAL-01)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and

Executive Council for approval. Any infonnatioii that is private, confidential or proprietary must

be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Narne

Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack
Counties, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

2 Industrial Park Drive

PC Box 1016

Concord, NH 03302-1016

1.5 Contractor Phone .

Number

(603) 225-3295

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42-423010- ,

79270000

1.7 Completion Date

9/30/2026

1.8 Price Limitation

$558,759

1.9 Contracting OfTicer for State Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1. 11 Contractor Signature

OocuSign«d by:

UmaJU V ?/!«/2023

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Jeanne Agri

chief Executive Officer

rrj'^'Sl^l^'^ge^ncy Signature
^  DQCiiStfli>«d by:

UjX s. fsy ^^^2023

1.14 Nante and Title of State Agency Signatory .
Katja S. FOX

Di rector

1.15 'ApprovaTby the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)
,—Docusigntd by: RODyo Guari no

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable) •

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
Contractor Initials

Date 8/30/2023



DocuSign Envelope ID: F30922F7-12F6-4EE9-94E2-582CD159dE18

2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perfomi, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the dale the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be perfonned at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are

contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any slate or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the

appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
eyent of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
Slate shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of pa>'ment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor'for all

expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the

contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTORWiTH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Semces, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable, statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal

authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In.addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United Stales, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
Stale or the United Slates issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Ser\'ices. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
6ther\vise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Ser\'ices to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. , This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the Slate's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Stale.

Page 2 of 4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, efieclive two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of tennination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other, obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as\ breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor' shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the

Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the Stale's discretion, the Contractor

shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page 3

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including; but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, sur\'eys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Slate or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in

which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the Slate.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
parly.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless llie State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omi^ssioiife of the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable ifor any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate ,
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described iii subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endoreements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3. The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensalion").

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting OlTicer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto, to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Slates
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the '
parties hereto and only afler approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and

inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions .arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit. ,

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any stale or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.

Page 4 of 4
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I  * I

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Rural Supportive Services Only - Street Outreach

EXHIBIT A

1.2.

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions'to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended
as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and subject to
the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the State of New
Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and all obligations of the
parties hereunder, shall become effective October 1, 2023 ("Effective Date").

Paragraph 3., Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3. as follows:

3.3. The parties.may extend the Agreement for up to three (3) additional years from
the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the Governor and Executive
Council.

Paragraph 12., Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3. as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the Contractor
and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance with
those conditions. The Contractor shall have written agreements with all
subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed, and if applicable, a
Business Associate Agreerrient in accordance with the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act. Written agreements shall specify how
corrective action shall be managed. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective action as
necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with a list of all
subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify the State of any
inadequate subcontractor performance.

1.3.

SS-2024-DBH-21-RURAL-01 A-1.2

Community Action Program of Belknap Merrimack Counties, inc. Page 1 of 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Rural Supportive Services Only - Street Outreach

,  EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. Rural Supportive Services Only - Street Outreach (RSSO-SO)

1.1.1. The Contractor must provide street outreach services to approximately 50-
100 individuals and families experiencing homelessness annually through a
Rural Supportive Services Only - Street Outreach (RSSO-SO) program.
RSSO-SO programs offer services necessary to reach unsheltered
individuals and families experiencing homelessness to connect them with
emergency shelter, housing, or critical services and provide urgent non-
facility-based care to those who are unwilling or unable to access emergency

■  .shelter, housing, or an appropriate health facility.

1.1.2. The Contractor must ensure services are available in Belknap and Merrimack
counties.

1.1.3. The Contractor must provide supportive services to individuals who, as
defined by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
in 24 CFR 578.3, are:

1.1.3.1. Literally homelessness (Category 1); or

1.1.3.2. At imminent risk of homelessness (Category 2); or

1.1.3.3. Fleeing/attempting to flee domestic violence (DV) or other
dangerous or life-threatening conditions while experiencing
homelessness, or while at imminent risk of homelessness
(Category 4).

1.1.4. The Contractor must prioritize households experiencing unsheltered
homelessness or with histories of unsheltered homelessness, consistent with
the Continuum of Care (CoC) plan for serving individuals and families with
severe service needs, as required in Section VII.B.R of the Supplemental
Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO).

1.1.5. The Contractor must ensure staff regularly visit homeless encarnpments,
drop-in centers, soup kitchens, and other unsheltered locations to connect
with and follow up with unsheltered participants regarding client-identified
needs.

1.1.6. The Contractor must adequately document program participants' eligibility,
relative to their homeless status upon entry into the program.

1.1.7. The Contractor must provide evidence-based practices, referrals and
assistance to mainstreani resources including mental health, primary care
services, substance use treatment, income supports and housing services.

1.1.8. The Contractor must make connections to stable housing with tailored
services and supports, per the participant's choice, for individuals
experiencing homelessness.

/<—DS

SS-2024-DBH-21-RURAL-01 B-2.0 Conlractor lnitialsVj_

8/30/2023
Community Action Program of Belknap - Merrimack Counties, Inc. Page 1 of 13 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Rural Supportive Services Only - Street Outreach

•  EXHIBIT B

1.1.9. The Contractor must provide supportive services designed to meet the needs
of the program participants.

1.1.10. The Contractor must assign an outreach worker to each participant upon
program entry.

1.1.11. The Contractor must develop a housing stability plan with program
participants that outlines the steps to be taken, including but not- limited to:

1.1.11.1. Increasing both earned and non-earned income based on
.  participant need:

1.1.11.2. Ensuring that program participants receive individual assistance
in obtaining the benefits of mainstream health, social, and
employment programs for which they are eligible to apply and that
meet their needs; and

1.1.11.3. Conducting an annual assessment of service needs of the
program participants and adjust the services accordingly.

1.1.12. The Contractor must work with participants to identify their goals regarding
permanent housing and assist with resolvirig barriers to housing.

1.1.13. The Contractor must utilize the staff funded under this project to:

1.1.13.1. Enter participants into NH's Coordinated Entry (CE) system to
connect them with permanent housing options and solutions,
mainstream resources, employment and non-cash sources of
incomes, and other assistance as needed.

1.1.13.2. Conduct the CE assessment in accordance with the policies and
procedures of the CE system. The assessment process will
progressively collect only enough participant information to
prioritize and refer participants to available CoC housing and
support services

1.1.13:3. Ensure that all persons served by CE are assessed using the
approved CoC Coordinated Entry Assessment tool. The
Contractor must use this tool to ensure that all persons served
are assessed in a consistent manner, using the same process.

1.1.13.4. Ensure that participant assessment information is updated at
least once a year if the participant is served by'CE for more than
12 months. Staff may update participant records with new
information as new or updated information becomes known by
staff.

1.1.13.5. Work with participants to assist with apartment applications and
applications for additional housing assistance such as
Emergency Housing Voucher (EHV), mainstream, and Section 8
programs.
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1.2. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.2.1. The Contractor must adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the

approved HUD Project Application #SF-424.

1.2.2. The Contractor must participate in the Balance of State CoC CE System and
regional meetings designated to the mission of ending homelessness.

1.2.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days means business
days, excluding state and federal holidays.

1.2.4. The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department as
requested by the Department.

1.2.5. The Contractor must ensure staff participate In training as required by the
Department.

1.2.6. The Contractor must ensure the program includes, but is not limited to:

1.2.6.1. Utilization of the Housing First model that ensures:

1.2.6.1.1. Barriers to entering housing are not imposed beyond
those required by federal regulations or state laws;

1.2.6.1.2. Providing supportive services to those with the
highest service needs, including those with histories
of unsheltered homelessness and those who do not

traditionally engage with supportive services.

1.2.6.1.3. Participation terminates only for the most severe
reasons, after available options to maintain housing
are exhausted, as detailed in HUD regulations, 24
CFR 578.91.

1.2.6.2. Development of an ongoing assessment of Housing and
Supportive -Services that is provided to participants in order to
deliver assistance in obtaining necessary skills and resources,to
live in the community independently.

1.2.7. The Contractor must ensure participants connect with supportive services
and community resources to meet basic needs including, but not limited to:
housing, safety, food, mental health and medical care. The Contractor must

.  ensure:

1.2.7.1, Participants increase safety through planning and trauma-
informed resource provision;

1.2.7.2. Facilitation of the transition of individuals, youth, and families
■  experiencing homelessness to permanent housing and

maximized self-sufficiency;

. 1.2.7.3. Participants are empowered by Contractor's program to increase
safety and regain control and independence;

—OS
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1.2.7.4. Participants are offered connections to assistance in applying for
compensation funds, help filing for restraining orders, court
advocacy and referrals to free legal services; and

1.2.7.5. Households with children will be connected to education

resources, school staff, and chlldcare services, based on need.

1.2.8. The Contractor must conduct an annual assessment of service needs of the

program participants and adjust the services accordingly.

1.2.9. The Contractor must ensure their staff assist with referrals for substance

misuse, mental health, medical needs, peer support, or any other need for
referral assistance identified by the participant.

1.2.10. The Contractor must assess project outcomes, to include participants moving
into and retaining permanent housing, as well as participants' connections
with community and mainstream services, to increase independence and
household income to sustain permanent housing.

1.2.11. The Contractor must actively participate in reviews conducted by the
Department, onsite or remotely, as determined by the Department or HUD,
on an annual basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department, that must
include, but are not limited to, participant files and financial data to ensure
compliance with contract objectives, state policies and federal regulations.
The Contractor must:

1.2.11.1. Ensure the Department and HUD have access to participant files;

1.2.11.2. Ensure financial data is available, as requested by the
■Department and/ or HUD; and

1.2.11.3. Provide other information that assists in determining contract
compliance, as requested by the Department and/ or HUD.

1.2.12. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR
Part 578.103(b), HUD, the HUD Office of the Inspector General, and the
Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized
representatives, must have the right of access to all books, documents,
papers, or other records of the Contractor that are pertinent to the (CoC)
grant, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. These
rights of access are not limited to the required retention period, but last as
long as the records are retained.

1.2.13. The Contractor must adhere to federal and state financial and confidentiality
laws, and comply with the approved HUD CoC program application, program
narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments thereto, as detailed
in the applicable Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) CoC Project
Application approved by HUD.

1.2.14. The Contractor must cooperate fully with, and must answer all questions
related to this Agreement from representatives of state or federal agencies

-OS
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who may conduct periodic observation and review of performance, activities,
and conduct an inspection of records and documents.

1.2.15. The Contractor must provide services according to the HUD regulations
outlined in Public Law 102-550, 24 CFR Part 578, the CoC Program, HUD
Project Application #SF-424 and other written appropriate HUD
policies/directives except for where HUD waivers are granted.

1.2.16. The Contractor must ensure, participating individuals, youth, and families
meet the requirement definition of homelessness, or at imminent risk of
homelessness qualifications, as defined in HUD regulations, to be eligible for
contract services,.as applicable to the project.

1.2.17. Per The McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, as amended by S. 896,
The Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to
Housing (HEARTH) Act of 2009,
https://www.hud.gov/sites/documents/HAAA_HEARTH.PDF:

1.2.17.1. The Contractor must utilize the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS) as the primary
reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs funded through this contract.

1.2.17.2. The Contractor must ensure all programs are licensed to provide
client level data into the NH HMIS or into a comparable database,
per 24 CFR 578, and as detailed in the following publication from
The National Network to. End Domestic Violence (NNEDV):
http://qlhrn.org/wordpress1/wp-content/uploads/2018/08/

Comparable-Database-for-DV-NNEDV.pdf.

The Contractor must follow NH HMIS policy, including
1.2.17.3. specific information required for data entry, accuracy of data

entered, and time required for data entry. Refer to Exhibit
E for Information Security requirements and Exhibit F for
Privacy requirements.

1.2.18. The Contractor must comply with all record-keeping requirements as set forth
by HUD under 24 CFR 578.103.

1.2.19. The Contractor must establish and mairitain standard operating procedures

to ensure CoC program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578, 2
CFR Part 500, and must establish and maintain sufficient records to enable
HUD and the Department to determine Contractor compliance, including but
not limited to: .

1.2.19.1. Continuum of Care Records. The Contractor must maintain the
following documentation related to establishing and operating a
CoC:

•OS
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1.2.19.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor must

maintain acceptable evidence of homeless status in
accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b);

1.2.19.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status. The

Contractor must maintain records that establish "at

risk of homelessness" status of each individual or

family who receives CoC homelessness prevention
assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c); and

1.2.19.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of
Harm. The Contractor must maintain documentation

of each program participant who moved to a different
CoC due to imminent threat of further domestic

violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
as.defined in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor
must retain documentation that includes, but is not
limited to:

1.2.19.1.3.1. The original incidence of domestic
violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking, only if the original
violence is not already documented in
the program participant's case file.
This may be written observation of the
housing or service provider; a letter or
other documentation. from a victim

service provider, social worker, legal
assistance provider, pastoral
counselor, mental health provider, or
other professional from whom the
victim has sought assistance; medical
or dental records; court records or law
enforcement records; or, written
certification by the program participant
to whom the violence occurred/or by
the head of household; and

1.2.19.1.3.2. The reasonable belief of imminent

threat of further domestic violence,

dating violence, or sexual assault or
stalking, which would include threats
from a third-party, such as a friend or
family member of the perpetrator of the
violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or service
provider; a letter or other
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documentation fronh a victim service

provider, social worker, legal
assistance provider, pastoral
counselor, mental health provider, or
other professional from whom the
victim has sought assistance; current
restrajning order; recent court order or
other court records; law enforcement
report or records; communication
records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends
of the perpetrator of the violence,
including emails, voicemails, text
messages, and social media posts; or
a written certification by the program
participant to whom the violence
occurred or the head of household.

1.2.19.2. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who
receives housing assistance where rent or an occupancy charge
is paid by the program participant, the Contractor must keep the
following documentation of annual income:

1.2.19.2.1; Income evaluation form specified by HUD and
completed by the Contractor;

1.2.19.2.2. Source documents, which include but are not limited

to:

1.2.19.2.2.1. Most recent wage statement;

1.2.19.2.2.2. Unemployment compensation
statement;

1.2.19.2.2.3. Public benefits statement, and bank
statements for the assets held by the
program participant; and

1.2.19.2.2.4. Income received before the date of the

evaluation.

1.2.19.2.3. To the extent that source documents are

unobtainable, a written statement by a relevant third
party, which may include an employer or a
government benefits administrator, or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral
verification by the relevant third party of the income
the program participant received over the most recent
period; or

,  D8
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1.2.19.2.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party
verification are unobtainable, the written certification
by the program participant of the amount of income
that the program participant is reasonably expected
to receive over the three (3) month period following
the evaluation.

1.2.19.3. Program Participant Records. In ■ addition to evidence of
homelessness status or at-risk-of-homelessness status, as

applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

1.2.19.3.1. The services and assistance provided to that
program participant, including evidence that the
Contractor conducted an annual assessment of

services for those program participants that remain in
the program for more than a year and adjusted the
service package accordingly, and including case
management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F);and.

1.2.19.3.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of
assistance requirement in 24 CFR 578.91.

1.2.19.4. Housing Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of
compliance with the housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b),
including inspection reports.

1.2.19.5. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of
supportive services provided under the Contractor's program and
the amounts spent on those services. The Contractor must keep
documentation that the records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was
adjusted as necessary.

1.2.20. The Contractor must maintain records that document compliance with:

1.2.20.1. The organizational conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR
578.95(c):

1.2.20.2. The CoC board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR
578.95(b); and

1.2.20.3. The other conflicts reauirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

1.2.21. The Contractor must develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal
conflict-of-interest policy that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR
578.95, including records supporting any exceptions to the personal conflict-
of-interest prohibitions.

1.2.22. The Contractor must comply and retain documentation of compliance with:
— OS
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1.2.22.1. The homeless participation requirements in accordance with 24
CFR 578.75(g);

1.2.22.2. The faith-based activities requirements in accordance with 24
CFR 578.87(b);

1.2.22.3. Requirements of 24 CFR 578.93(c) for affirmatively furthering fair
housing by maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program;

1.2.22.4. Other federal requirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable;

1.2.22.5. Other records specified by HUD. The Contractor must keep other
records as specified by HUD; and

1.2.22.6. Procurement requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

1.2.23. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security
requirements for HMIS data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor must develop and
implement written procedures to ensure:

1.2.23.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any
participant who applies for and/or receives CoC assistance are
kept secure and confidential;

1.2.23.2. The address or location of any family violence project, assisted
with CoC funds, are not made public, except with written
authorization of the person responsible for the operation of the
project; and

1.2.23.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant
is not made public, except as provided under a preexisting
privacy policy of the recipient or sub recipient and consistent with
state and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of
confidentiality.

2. Contract Administration

2.1., The Contractor must have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings
requested by the Department's Bureau of Homeless Services (BHS), including training
in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws. To the extent
possible, BHS must notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5)
working days in advance of each meeting.

2.2. The Contractor must inform the Department of any staffing changes within thirty (30)
' days of the change.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor must submit an Annual Performance Report (APR) to the Department
within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion Date on the form required, or
specified, by the Department.

3.2. The Contractor must ensure the APR is submitted to: ,—ds
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NH DHHS

Bureau of Homeless Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

3.3. The Contractor must ensure the APR includes a summary of aggregate results of the
project activities, consistent with the format proposed in the Contractor's application
submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year CoC Notice of Funding Opportunity
(NOFO).

3.4. The Contractor must submit other reports as requested by the Department in
compliance with NH HMIS policy and/or Department policies and procedures.

3.5. The Contractor may be required to collect and share data with the Department, in a
format specified by the Department, for the provision of other key data and metrics,
including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

4. Exhibits Incorporated

4.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health information in compliance
with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information (Privacy
Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached Exhibit I,
Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

4.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement
in accordance with the terms of Exhibit E, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

4.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits A through F, which are attached hereto
and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation or
court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the State
has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under
this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate
Programs and Services (CLAS)

5.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement Effective
Date, a detailed description of the communication access and language
assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful access to programs
and/or services to individuals with limited English proficiency: individuals who
are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision;
and individuals who have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

j^—DS
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5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials
prepared during or resulting from the performance of the services of this
Agreement must include the following statement, "The preparation of this
(report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided
in part by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as
were available or required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and
Human Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under this Agreement must have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures:

5.3.3.2. Resource directories;

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines;

5.3.3.4. Posters; and

5.3.3.5. Reports

5.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under this
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor must
comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which must impose an order or duty upon the contractor with
respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any governmental license or permit must be required for the
operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services, the
Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with
the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with
the foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities must comply with all rules,
orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal
and the local fire protection agency, and must be in conformance with local
building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

5.5. Eligibility Determinations

5.5.1.' If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals, youth,
and/ or families such eligibility verifications must be made in accordance with
applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and
procedures. C-DS
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5.5.2. Eligibility determinations must be made on forms provided, or required by the
Department for that purpose and must be made and remade, or reissued at
such times as are prescribed by the Department.

5.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor must maintain a data file on each participant of services
hereunder, which file must include all information necessary to support an
eligibility determination and such other information as the Department
requests. The Contractor must furnish the Department with all forms and
documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may
request or require.

5.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well
as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that
determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all
applicants for services must be permitted to fill out an application, form and
that each applicant or re-applicant must be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with applicable regulations.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data evidencing
and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the
performance of the Contract, and all income received or collected by the
Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures
and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and
expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include,
without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs
such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for
materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of application and eligibility
(including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient),
records regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the.
Department to obtain payment for such services.

6.2. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor must ensure all records, originals or
copies made by microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to
CoC funds are retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and
receipt of final payment by the Contractor, unless records are otherwise required to
be maintained for a period in excess of the five (5) year period according to state or
federal law or regulation.

-OS
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6.3. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any
of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and records

■ maintained pursuant to this Agreement for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts
and transcripts.

6.4. If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report, the Department must disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department retains the
right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to
recover such sums from the Contractor.

•DS
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds, Title XIV Housing Programs under the Homeless Emergency
Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitle A-
Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550), as awarded on February 2, 2023, by
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development- (HUD), Continuum of
Care Program, Assistance Listing # 14.267, FAIN NH0152R1T002200.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. The Contractor must submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the Department
no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following the month in which
the services were provided. The Contractor must ensure each invoice:

3.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with New
Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

3.2. Is submitted In a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

3.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the previous month.

3.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice that may
include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records, receipts for purchases,
and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

3.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

3.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation, and is
emailed to housinasuDPortsinvoices@dhhs.nh.qov or mailed to:

NHDHHS

Bureau of Homeless Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

4. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within forty-five (45) days of
receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses,
subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

5. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall be due to
, the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract completion date specified
in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7, Completion Date.

6. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting encumbrances between State
Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the Budget Office may be made by written
agreement of both parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive
Council, if needed and justified.
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7. Audits

7.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act(5)dhhs.nh.Qov if any of the
following conditions exist:

7.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000, or more, in federal
funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the
most recently completed fiscal year.

7.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA7:28, lll-b.

7.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required by
Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an
annual financial audit.

7.1.4. Condition D - The contractor expends less than $750,000 in federal
funds, during the fiscal year, is exempt from Federal Monitoring
Requirements, except as noted in 2 CFR 200.503, but records must be
available for review, or audit, by appropriate officials of the Federal
agency, pass through entity, and Government Accountability Office
(GAG). Federal awards expended as a recipient or a subrecipient are
subject to audit under this part. The payments received for goods or
services provided as a contractor are" not Federal awards. Section §
200.331 sets forth the considerations in determining whether payments
constitute a Federal award or a payment for goods or services provided
as a contractor.

7.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor must submit an annual Single Audit performed
by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov
within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in
accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
awards.

7.2.'1. The Contractor must submit a copy of any Single Audit findings and any
associated corrective action plans. The Contractor must submit
quarterly progress reports on the status of implementation of the
corrective action plan.

7.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor must submit an annual financial
audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year.

7.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable
for any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all
payments made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which
have been disallowed because of such an exception.

7.5. If the Contractor is not subject to the audit requirements of 2 CFR part 2^0, the
o^^to theContractor shall submit one (1) copy of an audited financial ref
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Department, utilizing the guidelines set forth by the Comptroller General of the
United States in "Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions," within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart

■  F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards 90 days after contract completion date.

8. Proiect Costs: Payment Schedule: Review by the State

8.1. Project Costs: As'used in this Agreement, the term "Project Costs" means all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for
payment, in accordance with Public Law 102-550, as well as allowable cost
standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to time and with the
rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. All subcontractors shall
meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

8.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR
578 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components:
permanent housing: transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and, in
some cases, homeless prevention or an identified program component under the
applicable Notice of Funding Opportunity, such as the Joint Transitional Housing,
and Permanent Housing-Rapid Rehousing component project . Administrative
costs are eligible for all components. All components are subject to the restrictions
on combining funds for certain eligible activities in a single project found in 24 CFR
578.87(c).

8.3. Match Funds;

8.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by
■ HUD regulations and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

8.3.2. Match funds shall be documented with each payment request.

8.3.3. The Contractor shall match all grant funds except for leasing funds, with
no less than twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions

from other sources.

8.3.4. The Contractor may choose to utilize Cash Match, or In-Kind Match, for

the cost of activities that are eligible under subpart D of 24 CFR 578.

The Contractor shall:

8.3.4.1. The Contractor must substantiate the cash match in a

commitment letter, and then must be tracked through the
Contractor's financial statements, general ledgers, and
other records that reflect yearly financial status to show that
the cash was spent on eligible program expenses within the
grant term.

8.3.5. The cash match written commitment must , be documented on the

committing agency's letterhead and must be signed and dated by an
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■  authorized representative of the agency providing the cash rnatch. The
documentation, at a minimum, must include the following:

8.3.5.1. Amount of cash to be provided for the project.

8.3.5.2. -Specific date the cash will be available to the project.

8.3.5.3. Grant and fiscal year to which the cash match will be
contributed.

. 8.3.5.4. Allowable activities to be funded by the cash match.
Documentation of expended match must include:

8.3.5.4.1. Agreement for cash match.

8.3.5.4.2. Cash match tracking which is done according
to general accounting principles in the
general ledger.

8.3.5.4.3. Source documentation that cash match is

spent on eligible activities under CoC
Program interim rule.

8.3.6. The Contractor must maintain records of the source and use of

contributions made to satisfy the match requirement in 24 CFR 578.73.

8.3.7. If the Contractor utilizes In-Kind Match, the Contractor must ensure the

following requirements are met:

8.3.7.1. The in-kind property, equipment, or goods must be
substantiated in a commitment letter and must be tracked

by the subrecipient agency to demonstrate that these items
were delivered to the project, and/or, to its participants,
during the grant term.

8.3.7.2. Written commitments for in-kind property, equipment, or
goods must be documented on the committing agency's
letterhead and must be signed and dated by an authorized
representative of the agency providing the in-kind match.
The documentation, at a minimum, must include the
following:

8.3.7.2.1. Description and value of the donated
property, equipment, or goods;

8.3.7.2.2. Specific date the property, equipment, or
goods will be made available to the project;

8.3.7.2.3. Grant and fiscal year to which the property,
equipment, or goods will be contributed; and

8.3.7.2.4. Method used to determine the value of the

property, equipment, or goods

8.3.8. In-Kind Services. must be substantiated in a Memorandum of

Understanding (MOU), and then must be tracked by the r§ci|i1ent or
SS-2024-DBH-21-RURAL-01 C-2.0 Contractor Initials
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subrecipient to show that the services were delivered to program
participants during the grant term. Any services or benefits committed to
a program participant rather than the recipient or subrecipient through
an MOU are generally ineligible to be counted as match.

8.3.8.1. Written commitments of in^kind services, during the
application, must be initially documented on the committing
agency's letterhead. The document must be signed and
dated by an authorized representative of the agency
providing the in-kind services.

8.3.8.2. An MOU must be in place between the
recipient/subrecipient. and service provider by the time of
grant execution and must include detail of the in-kind
services, their value, and the calculation method to be used

in determining their value. Any services provided prior to the
execution of the MOU cannot be counted towards match.

8.3.9. Each MOU must:

8.3.9.1. Establish the unconditional commitment to provide the
services, provided that the project is selected for funding by
the CoC and HUD.

8.3.9.2. Specify the services to be provided to the project.

. 8.3.9.3. List the profession of the person who will provide the
■ services.

8.3.9.4. Include the hourly cost of the services.

8.3.9.5. List the grant and fiscal year to which the in-kind match will
be contributed.

8.3.9.6. Detail the system to be used to document the actual quantity
and value of the services provided to program participants
during the grant term.

8.3.10. During the grant term, the actual /n-Zc/nc/services provided to participants
must be documented. The documentation must include the following:

8.3.10.1. Quantity of services provided.

8.3.10.2. Value of the services.

8.3.10.3. Date(s) on which the services were provided.

8.3.11. Subrecipients must request information from third-party service
providers on in-kind service match activity at least annually and are
responsible for verifying that the match is eligible and related to program
participants served in the operating year.

8.4. Payment of Project Costs:

8.4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for
actual, eligible expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this ̂ ^^ement,
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and shall be in accordance with the approved line items as specified In
the applicable Exhibit C, Budget, and as defined by HUD under the
provisions of Public Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations, subject
to the availability of sufficient funds.

8.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as
eligible and allowable costs as stated in these Payment Terms. The
Contractor must have written approval from the State prior to billing for
any other expenses.

8.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

.  8.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of
the Annual Performance Report, Termination Report or Audited Financial
Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor
and all payments made to date.

8.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of expenses that are
not determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual

expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed
expenditures, informing the Contractor of any such disallowance.

8.5.3. If the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made. It
shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor
pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture.

8.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees
that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in
the event of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or
regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services,
products,, required report submissions, as detailed in this agreement, or
NH-HMIS data entry requirements, have not been satisfactorily completed
in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

9. Expense Eligibility

9.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall
utilize Continuum of Care Program funds, as specified in these Payment Terms,
from the HUD Continuum of Care Program, for contract services.

9.2. Operating Expenses:

9.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include:

9.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing.

9.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (including property and car).

9.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major
systems of the housing (provided that the payments must be
based on the useful life of the system and expected
replacement cost).

-OS
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9.2.1.4. ■ Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50)
percent of the units or area is paid for with grant funds.

9.2.1.5. Utilities, including electricity, gas and water.

9.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment. ■

9.2.2. Ineligible costs include:

9.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project.

9.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-
only facilities.

9.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of
maintaining and repairing the housing are included in the
lease.

9.2.2.4. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible below is not
an eligible cost of providing supportive services using
Continuum of Care program funds. Staff training and costs of
obtaining professional licensure or certifications needed to
provide supportive services are not eligible costs.

9.3. Supportive Services

9.3.1. Eligible supportive services costs shall comply with all HUD regulations in
24 CFR 578.53, and are available to individuals actively participating in
the permanent housing program.

9.3.2. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for
program participants who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons
living with HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence,
sexual assault, or stalking.

9.3.3. Eligible costs shall include:

9:3.3.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of the

assessment required by 578.53(a) (2).

9.3.3.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-time moving
costs are eligible and include truck rental and hiring a moving
company.

9:3.3.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging-,
coordinating, and monitoring the delivery of individualized
services to meet the needs of the program participant(s) are
eligible costs.

9.3.3.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care,
and providing child-care vouchers, for children from families
experiencing homelessness, including providing meals and
snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated developmental
activities are eligible. i
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9.3.3.5. Education Sen/ices. The costs of improving knowledge and
basic educational skills are eligible.

9.3.3.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of
establishing and operating employment assistance and' job
training programs are eligible, including classroom, online
and/or computer instruction, on-the-job instruction, services
that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring
learning skills, and/or increasing earnirig potential. The cost of
providing reasonable stipends to program participants in
employment assistance and job training programs is also an
eligible cost.

9.3.3.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program
participants is eligible.

9.3.3.8. Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting
eligible program participants to locate, obtain, and retain
suitable housing are eligible.

9.3.3.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed
attorneys and by person(s) under the supervision of licensed
attorneys, for advice and representation in matters that
interfere with homeless individual or family's ability to obtain
and retain housing.

9.3.3.10. Life Skills training. The., costs of teaching critical life
management skills that may never have been learned or have
been lost during course of physical or mental illness, domestic
violence, substance abuse, and homelessness are eligible.
These services must be necessary to assist the program
participant to function independently in the community.
Component life skills training are the budgeting of resources
and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for food and other needed items,
nutrition, the use of public transportation, and parent training.

9.3.3.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient
treatment of mental health conditions that are provided by
licensed professionals. Component services are crisis

■  interventions: counseling; individual, family, or group therapy
sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or
explanations about the use and management of medications;
and combinations of therapeutic approaches to address
multiple problems.

9.3.3.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct
outpatient treatment of medical conditions when provided by
licensed medical professionals.

9.3.3.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons
for the purpose of providing immediate su^/t and
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intervention, as well as identifying potential program
participants, are eligible.

9.3.3.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program
participant intake and assessment, outpatient treatment, group
and individual counselirig, and drug testing are eligible.
Inpatient detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment are ineligible.

9.3.3.15. Transportation Services, as described in 24CFR 578(e) (15).

9.3.3.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for
utility deposits. Utility deposits must be one-time, paid directly
to utility companies.

9.3.3.17. Direct provision of services. If a service, described as eligible
in these Payment Terms, is being directly delivered by the
recipient or subrecipient, eligible costs for those services also
include the following;

9.3.3.17.1. , The costs of labor or supplies, and materials
incurred by the recipient or subrecipient in directly
providing supportive services to program
participants.

9.3.3.17.2. The salary and benefit packages of the recipient
and subrecipient staff who directly deliver the
services.

9.3.4. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for Individuals, youth, and
families experiencing homelessness.

9.3.5. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is
already receiving rental assistance, or living in a housing unit receiving
rental assistance or operating assistance through other federal. State, or
local sources.

9.3.6. Rental assistance shall be administered in accordance with the policies

and procedures established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR
578.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. and may be:

9.3.6.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent;

9.3.6.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or

9.3.6.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

9.3.7. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed
2 months of rent! ^

9.3.8. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the
landlord, in addition to the security deposit and payment of first month's
rent.

OS
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9.3.9. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable,

as determined by the Contractor, in relation to rents being charged for
comparable unassisted units, taking into account the location, size, type,
quality, amenities, facilities, and management and maintenance of each
unit.

9.3.10. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one
month's rent to pay for any damage to housing due to the action of a
program participant. For Leasing funds only: Property damages may be
paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security deposits.

9.3.11. Housing shall be in compliance with all State and local housing codes,
licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act,
and any other requirements,of the jurisdiction in which the housing is
located regarding the condition of the structure and. operation of the
housing or services.

9.3.12. The Contractor shall provide one of the following types of rental
assistance: Tenant-based, Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental
assistance as described by HUD in 24 CFR 578.51.

9.3.12.1. Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which
program participants choose housing of an appropriate size in
which to reside. When necessary to facilitate the coordination
of supportive services, recipients and subrecipients may
require program participants to live in a specific area for their
entire period of participation, or in a specific structure for the
first year and in a specific area for the remainderof their period
of participation. Short and medium term rental assistance,
provided under the Rapid Re-Housing program component
must be tenant based rental assistance.

9.3.12.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts
between the recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor
may be a private, nonprofit organization, or a community
mental health agency established as a public nonprofit
organization. Program participants must reside in housing
owned or leased by the sponsor.

9.3:12.3. Project-based rerital assistance is provided through a contract
with the owner of an .existing structure, where the owner
agrees to lease the subsidized units to program participants.
Program participants will not retain rental assistance if they
move.

9.3.12.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental
assistance, program participants must enter into a lease
agreement for a term of at least one year, which is terminable
for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable upon

— DS
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expiration for terms that are a minimum of one month long,
except on prior notice by either party.

9.4. Administrative Costs:

9.4.1. Eligible administrative costs include:

9.4.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part, for
the payment of project administrative costs related to' the
planning and execution of Continuum of Care activities. This
does not include staff and overhead costs directly related to
carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through
578.57, because those costs are eligible as part of those
activities.

9.4.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of
overall program management, coordination, monitoring and
evaluation. These costs include, but are not limited to,
necessary expenditures for the following:,

9.4.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the
Contractor's staff, or other staff engaged in
program administration.

9.4.1.2.2. In charging costs to this category, the Contractor
may include the entire salary, wages, and related
costs allocable to the program of each person
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the
program involve program administration
assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary,
wages, and related costs of each person whose
job includes any program administration
assignments. The Contractor may only use one of
these methods for each fiscal year grant. Program
administration assignments include the following:

9.4.1.2.2.1. Preparing program budgets and
schedules, and amendments to
those budgets and schedules.

9.4.1.2.2.2. Developing systems for assuring
compliance with ■ program
requirements.

9.4.1.2.2.3. Developing interagency
agreements and agreements with
subrecipient and Contractors to
carry out program activities.

9.4.1.2.2.4. Monitoring program activities for
progress and compliance , with
program requirements.

OS
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9.4.1.2.2.5. Preparing reports and other
documents related to the program
for submission to HUD.

9.4.1.2.2.6. Coordinating the solution of audit
and rhonitoring findings.

9.4.1.2.2.7. Preparing reports and other
documents directly related to the
program submission to HIJD.

9.4.1.2.2.8. Evaluating program results against
stated objectives.

9.4.1.2.2.9. Managing or supervising persons
whose primary responsibilities are
among those program
administration assignments, as
listed Immediately above.

9.4.1.2.2.10. Travel costs incurred for official

business in carrying- out the
program.

9.4.1.2.2.11. Administrative services performed
under third party contracts or
agreements. including such

-  services as general legal services,
accounting services, and audit
services.

9.4.1.2.2.12. Other costs for goods and services
required for administration of the
program, including such goods and
services as rental or purchase of
equipment, insurance, utilities,
office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of
office space.

9.4.1.2.2.13. Training on Continuum of Care
requirements. Costs of providirig
training on Continuum of Care
requirements and attending HUD-
Sponsored Continuum of Care
trainings.

9.4.1.2.2.14. Environmental review. Costs of

carrying out the environmental
review responsibilities under 24
CFR 578.31.

-DS

J/!
9.5. Leasing:
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9.5.1. When the Contractor is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant

funds may be used to pay .for 100 percent of the costs of . leasing a
structure or structures, or portions thereof, to provide housing or.
supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3) years. Leasing
funds 'may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the
contractor, their parent organization, any other related organization(s), or
organizations that are members of a partnership, where the partnership
owns the structure, unless HUD authorized an exception for good cause.

9.5.2. Requirements:

9.5.2.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or
part of a structure or structures, the rent paid must be
reasonable in relation to rents being charged in the area for
comparable' space. In addition, the rent paid may not exceed
rents currently being charged by the same owner for
comparable unassisted space.

9.5.2.2. Leasing individual units. When the grant funds are used to pay
rent for individual housing units, the rent paid must reasonable
in relation to rents being charged for comparable units, taking
into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities,
facilities, and management services. In addition, the rents may
not exceed rents currently being charged for comparable units,
and the rent paid may not exceed HUD-determined fair market
rents.

9.5.2.3. Utilities. If electricity, gas, and water are included in the rent,
these utilities may be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not
provided by the landlord, these utility costs are operating costs,
except for supportive service facilities. If the structure is being
used as a supportive service facility, then these utility costs are

• a supportive service cost.

9.5.2.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The
Contractor may use grant funds to pay security deposits, in an
amount not to exceed 2 months of actual rent. An advance
payment of last month's rent may be provided to the landlord

■  in addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's
rent.

9.5.2.5. Occupancy , agreements and subleases. Occupancy
.  , agreements and subleases are required as specified in 24

CFR 578.77(a).

9.5.2.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy
charges and rent from program participants must be calculated
as provided in 24 CFR 578.77.

SS-2024-DBH-21-RURAL-01 C-2.0
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.  EXHIBIT 0
9.5.2.7. Program income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from

program participants are program income and may be used as
provided under 24 CFR 578.97.

9.5.2.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8).

9.5.2.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be
reasonable in comparison to rents charged in the area for
similar housing units. Documentation of rent reasonableness
must be kept on file by the Contractor.

9.5.2.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUD-
determined fair market rents.

9.5.2.11. The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly; funds
may not be given directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

9.5.2.12. Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the
landlord for security deposits.

9.5.2.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already owns to
itself. ,

9.5.2.14. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing
codes, licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint
Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other requirements of the
jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the
condition of the structure and operation of the housing or
services.

9.6. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water).
However, the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified
in HUD regulations (24 CFR 578.77). Other services such as cable, air
conditioning, telephone. Internet access, cleaning, parkjng, pool charges, etc. are
at the participant's option.

.  9.7. The Contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this contract, or
counted as match, complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

10. Contractor Financial Management Svstem

10.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures that ensure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds
and any required nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds
disbursed in direct operations of the Contractor.

10.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with
\  2 CFR part 200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.
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|CoC Funds • NH01S2R1T002200

SFY2024 - 10/1/23-6/30/24

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SH>LRE

Activity Name BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportive Services 8  133.038 8 8 8 8 ■ 8 8  133.038 8 • 8

Administretion S  6.e52 8 8 8 8 • 8 8  6.652 8 • 8

25% Required Match 8  36.580 8 8 8  36.566 8 8 8 • 8

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 8  178,278 8 8 8  38.588 8 • 8 8  139.690 8 • 8

SFY2025 - 7/1/24-6/30/25

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

SupportM Services 177.384 8 8 8 8 - 8 8 177.384 8 - 8

Administration 8.669 8 8 8 8 • 8 8 8.869 8 • 8

25% Required Match 48.781 8 8 8 48.781 8 8 • 8 - 8

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 235.034 8 8 8 48.781 8 • 8 8 186.253 8 - 8

SFY2026 - 7/1/25-6/30/26

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportive Services 8 177.384 8 8 8 8 • 8 8 177.384 8 • 8

Administratjon 8 8.869 8 8 8 8 - 8 8 8.869 8 - 8

25% Required Match 8 48.781 8 8 8 48.781 8  - " 8 8 - 8

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 8 235,034 8 8 8 48.781 8 • 8 8 186.253 8 • 8

SFY2027 . 7/1/26-9/30/26

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportive Services 8  44.346 8 8 8 8 - 8  - 8  44.348 8 • 8

Administratian 8  2.217 8 8 8 8 • 8 8  2.217 8 • 8

25% Required Match 8  12.194 8 8 8  12.194 8 8 8 • 8

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 8  58.757 8  • 8 8  12,194 8 • 8 8  46.563 8 • 8

>TAL—10/1/23-91 - ■ IL liOliXi \

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportive Services 8  532.152 8 8 5 8 • 8 8  532.152 8 • 8

Administraticn 8  26.607 8 8 8 8 • 8 8  26.607 8 - 8

25% Reouired Match 8  146.342 8 8 8  146.342 8 8 8 • 8

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 8  705.101 8 8 8  148.342 8 - 8 8  558.759 8 • 8

TotilW/O Mitch 6M,7S»

r;
Contractor Initlair
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

SECTION A: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

. ALTERNATIVE I - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by contractors (and by inference, sub- contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that
a contractor (and by inference, sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the
Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each Agreement during the federal fiscal
year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon
which reliance is placed when the agency awards the Agreenient. False certification or violation of the ■
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The Contractor certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2.. The Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring

in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the

Agreement be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the Agreement, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;
1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under

subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every contract
officer on whose contract activity the convicted employee was working, unless the F^OBPSl

s
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agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number{s) of each affected Agreement;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and includiag

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The Contractor may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done
in connection with the specific Agreement.

Place of Performance {street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on fi le that are not identified here.

s-
vi 6/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials
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SECTION B: CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying,
and 31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF.EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by
specific mention sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
this Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub- contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,
in accordance with its instructions, see https://omb.report/icr/201009-0348-022/doc/20388401

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award .
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or
entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file
the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than
$100,000 for each such failure.

OS
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SECTION 0: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION AND OTHER

RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in
denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall
submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will
be considered in cpnnection.with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction.- However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification, or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation
in this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction: If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this Agreement is submitted If at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant." ''person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal." and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See
https://\Aww.govinfo.gov/app/details/CFR-2004-title45-vol1/CFR-2004-title45-vol1-part76/context.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this Agreement that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded partip9)-Ds
https://vww.ecfr.gov/current/title-22/chapter-V/part-513.

v1 6/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials
Federal Requirements Date
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9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this
transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (Agreement) been convicted of

or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense
in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or
local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State
antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. Are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(l)(b) of this certification; and

11.4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local).terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (Agreement), the prospective lower tier
participant, as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and
its principals:
13.1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or
agency.

13.2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (Agreement).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (Agreement) that it
will include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineliglbillty, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.
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SECTION D: CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED

ORGANIZATIONS. WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS. CLEAN AIR AND CLEAN WATER
ACT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subcontractors to comply, with any applicable federal
nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

1. The Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which
prohibits recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment
practices or in the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national
origin, and sex. The Act requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity
Plan;

2. The Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts
by reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under
this statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of
services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes
Equal Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

3. The Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or
activity);

I

4. The Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal
financial assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the
delivery of services or benefits, in any program or activity;

5. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and
local government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

6. The Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 168;1. 1683. 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

7. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

8. 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt.
42 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity;
Policies and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based
and community organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles
and policy-making criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

9. 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense
Authorization Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 20>B)-the Pilot

^ —
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Program for Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects
employees against reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants
and contracts.

10. The Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 740,1-7671q.) which seeks to protect human health and the .
environment from emissions that pollute ambient, or outdoor, air.

11. the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387) which establishes the basic structure for regulating
discharges of pollutants into the waters of the United States and regulating quality standards for surface
waters.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights,

"  to the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services,
and to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and, 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

v1 6/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials,
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SECTION E: CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of
1994 (Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased
or contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care,
education, or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal
programs either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan
guarantee. The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded
solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil
monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on
the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act
of 1994.

OS
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SECTION F: CERTiFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY

AND TRANSPARENCY ACT fFFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010. to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $30,000 or
more. If the Initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award
equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of
the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information),
the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
sub award or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;

1. Name of entity

2. Amount of award . .

3. Funding agency

4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants

5. Program source

6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

7. Location of the entity

8. Principle place of performance

9. Unique Entity Identifier (SAM DEI; DUNS#)

10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30
days, in which the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transpa'rency Act.

v1 6/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials.
Federal Requirements Date!llzZ_
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FORMA

As the Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

FND1A6MY33D3

1. The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts,

• subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or
more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants,
and/or cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13{a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

8/30/2023

Date:

Contractor Name:

— DoeuSlgncd by:

—6j81B29BABOA45A-

Name.-^eanne Agn

Title;
Chief Executive Officer

6
OS

v1 6/23 Exhibit D
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

, A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized" access, or any similar term referring to
situations vyhere persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable information,
whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health Information," Breach"

shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of
Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed-by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and ■

Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted services
- of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by state or
federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to Protected
Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial Information
(PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card
Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives DHHS
data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

■ 5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and
the regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss

Contractor Initials
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or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized access,
use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that Is not
designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information Technology
or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, by means of the
State, to transmit) will be considered an open network and not adequately secure for
the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI, PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means, information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as theirname, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when conibined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy,Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R., Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed
or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by the
American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Contractor Initials
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2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a request
for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a subpoena, etc.,
without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or object to
the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives of
DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing Confidential
Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have been evaluated
by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said application's encryption
capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If email
is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of persons
authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential Data, the
secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure. SSL encrypts
data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file hosting
services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit Confidential Data
said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

Contractor Initials
Ji!

V5. Last Update 10/09/18 8/30/2023
Page 3 of 9 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID; F30922F7-12F6-4EE9-94E2-582CD1598E18

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit E

DHHS Information Security Requirements

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when remotely
transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to access
or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be installed on the End

User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which inforrnation will be transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If End
User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will structure the
Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. SFTP
folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for 24-hour
auto-deletion cycle (i.e.'Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted under
this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered, under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply In the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place
to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be ih a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral,
antihacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as
a whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

-OS
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6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its sub
contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for securely
disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will obtain written
certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the Contractor or
any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of New

. Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in
accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing)
as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines for Media
Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. Department of
Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at time of the data
destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department upon request.
The written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data has
been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the
Stale and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a secure
method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data by means
of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential
information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted
services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential
information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation,
transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media used to
store the data (I.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect
potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or Department
confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End Users
in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services, for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum match those for
the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be completed
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access
being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior
express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office leadership
member within the Department.

11 . Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall make
efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent
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future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the
breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects maintain
the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less than the level
and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies; including, but not limited to,
provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS Privacy Act Regulations
{45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F^R. Parts 160 and 164) that
govern protections for individually identifiable health information and as applicable
under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to prevent
unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and scope of
security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements established
by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology. Refer to
Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm for the
Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident response
process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the State's Security
Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section
VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that
connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this Contract

to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to perform their official,
duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, implemented
to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS under this Contract
from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at.all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

Contractor Initials

V5. Last update 10/09/18 8/30/2023
Page 7 of 9 Dale



DocuSign Envelope ID: F30922F7-12F6-4EE9-94E2-582CD1598E18

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit E

DHHS Information Security Requirements

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being sent
to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to receive such'
information.

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually identifiable
data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is physically and
technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons during duty hours
as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when stored
on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and disclosed
using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this Contract,
including the privacy and security requirernents provided in herein, HIPAA, and other
applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data is disposed
of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any Security
Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
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4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents and
determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate Breach
notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different options, and
bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as applicable,
in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer: ■ -

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov B.

DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

Contractor Initials
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RIJSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement (Form P-37)
("Agreement"), and any of its agents who receive use or have access to protected health
information (PHI), as defined herein, shall be referred to as the "Business Associate." The State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, "Department" shall be referred
to as the "Covered Entity," The Contractor and the Department are collectively referred to as "the
parties." • '

The parties agree, to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public
Law 104-191, the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162, and 164 (HIPAA), provisions of the HITECH Act, Title XIII,
Subtitle D, Parts 1&2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, 42 USC 17934,
et sec., applicable to business associates, and as applicable, to be bound by the provisions of
the Confidentiality of Substance Use Disorder Patient Records, 42 USC s. 290 dd-2, 42 CFR Part
2, (Part 2), as any of these laws and regulations may be amended from time to time.

(1) Definitions.

a. The following terms shall have the same meaning as defined in HIPAA, the HITECH Act,
and Part 2, as they may be amended from time to time:

"Breach,"' "Designated Record Set," "Data Aggregation," Designated Record Set,"
"Health Care Operations," "HITECH Act," "Individual," "Privacy Rule," "Required by
law," "Security Rule," and "Secretary."

b. Business Associate Agreement, (BAA) means the Business Associate Agreement that
includes privacy and confidentiality requirements of the Business Associate working with
PHI and as applicable. Part 2 record(s) on behalf of the Covered Entity under the
Agreement.

c. "Constructively Identifiable," means there is a reasonable basis to believe that the
information could be used, alone or in combination with other reasonably available
information, by an anticipated recipient to identify an individual who is a subject of the
information.

d. "Protected Health Information" ("PHI") as used in the Agreement and the BAA, means
protected health information defined in HIPAA 45 CFR 160.103, limited to the information
created, received, or used by Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity^ and
includes any Part 2 records, if applicable, as defined below.

e' "Part 2 record" means any patient "Record," relating to a "Patient," and "Patient Identifying
information," as defined in 42 CFR Part 2.11.

f. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain, store, or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlineditgder
the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all its c
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officers, employees, and agents, shall protect any PHI as required by HIPPA and 42 CFR Part
2, and not use, disclose, maintain, store, or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a
violation of HIPAA or 42 CFR Part 2.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI, as applicable;

I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
I

II. As required by law, according to the terms set forth in paragraph c. and d. below;

III. According to the HiPAA minimum necessary standard;

IV. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of the Covered
Entity; and

V. Data that is de-identified or aggregated and remains constructively identifiable
may not be used for any purpose outside the performance of the Agreement.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the BAA or the Agreement to disclose
PHI to any third party or subcontractor prior to making any disclosure, the Business
Associate must obtain, a business associate agreement with the third party or
subcontractor, that complies with HIPAA and ensures that all requirements and restrictions
placed on the Business Associate as part of this BAA with the Covered Entity, are included
in those business associate agreements with the third party or subcontractor.

d. The Business Associate shall not. disclose any PHI in response to a request or demand for
disclosure, such as by a subpoena or court order, on the basis that it is required by law,
without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity can determine how to best protect
the PHI. If Covered Entity objects to the disclosure, the Business Associate agrees to refrain
from disclosing the PHI and shall cooperate with the Covered Entity in any effort the
Covered Entity undertakes to contest the request for disclosure, subpoena, or other legal
process. If applicable relating to Part 2 records, the Business Associate shall resist any
efforts to access part 2 records in any judicial proceeding.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. Business Associate shall implement appropriate safeguards to prevent unauthorized use
or disclosure of all PHI in accordance with HIPAA Privacy Rule and Security Rule with
regard to electronic PHI, and Part 2, as applicable.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer at
the following email address, DHHSPrivacvOfficer(S)dhhs.nh.aov after the Business
Associate has determined that any use or disclosure not provided for by its contract,
including any known or suspected privacy or security incident or breach has occurred
potentially exposing or compromising the PHI. This includes inadvertent or accidental
uses or disclosures or breaches of unsecured protected health information.

c. ■ In the event of a breach, the Business Associate shall comply with the terms of this
Business Associate Agreement, all applicable state and federal laws and regulations and
any additional requirements of the Agreement.

d. The Business Associate shall perform a risk assessment, based on the information
available at the time it becomes aware of any known or suspected privacy or security
breach as described above and communicate the risk assessment to the Covered Entity.
The risk assessment shall include, but not be limited to:

I. The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, includtn^lhe
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification; I

Exhibit F Contractor Initials —
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II. The unauthorized person who accessed, used, disclosed, or received the
protected health information;

III. Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed; and

IV. How the risk of loss of confidentiality to the protected health information
has been mitigated."

e. The Business Associate shall complete a risk assessment report at the conclusion of its
incident or breach investigation and provide the findings in a written report to the Covered
Entity as soon as practicable after the conclusion of the Business Associate's
investigation.

f. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received
by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the US Secretary of Health and
Human Services for purposes of determining the Business Associate's and the Covered
Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, and Part 2, if
applicable.

g. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the BAA to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and
conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein and an agreement that the
Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of all the Business
Associate's business associate agreements.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use anddisclosure of
PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business
Associate's compliance with the terms of the BAA and the Agreement.

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
•amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

k. Business Associate shall document any disclosures of PHI and information related to
any disclosures as would be required for.Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

I. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

m. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of_P(t^l
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within

Exhibit F Contfactor Initials ^
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business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the BusinessAssociate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

n. Within thirty (30) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
-Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-ups of such PHi in any form or

■ platform.

I. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been

otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, or if retention is governed by state
or federal law. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections
of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such
PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible for as

.  long as the Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its
sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI,
the Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been
destroyed.

(4) Obliaations of Covered Entitv

Covered Entity shall post a current version of the Notice of the Privacy Practices on the Covered
Entity's website: httDs://wvw.dhhs.nh.qbv/oos/hipaa/Dublications.htm in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.520.

a. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose-PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this BAA, pursuant to 45 CFRSection 164.506 or
45 CFR Section 164.508.

b. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination of Agreement for Cause

In addition to the General Provisions (P-37) of the Agreement, the Covered Entity may
immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a material
breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate Agreement. The Covered Entity
may either immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business.
Associate to cure the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions. Laws, and Reoulatorv References. All laws and regulations used, herein, shall
refer to those laws and regulations as amended from time to time. A reference in the
Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to a Section in HIPAA or 42 Part 2,
means the Section as in effect or as amended.

b. " Change in law. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such actio
is necessary from time to time for the Covered Entity and/or Business Associate

Exhibit F Contractor Initials
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comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, 42 CFR Part 2 • other
applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

c.

d.-

e.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the BAA and the Agreement shall
be resolved to permit Covered Entity and the Business Associate to comply with HIPAA
and 42 CFR Part 2.

Secreaation. If any term or condition of this BAA or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this BAA are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this BAA regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the BAA in section (3) n.l.. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) g. and Paragraph 13 of the
General Provisions (P-37) of the Agreement, shall survive the termination of the BfiA

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Business Associate
Agreement.

Department of Health and Human Services
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack, I

The State
DocuSign*d by;

S'
2A0FEC7O01S84F3...

Name of the Contractor
.  OocuSignad by:

Juuaiu. ifi
^  ft4Bin?<)RARnA4SA

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Katja s. Fox Jeanne Agri

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative

Di rector chief Executive Officer

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

8/31/2023 8/30/2023

Date Date

•OS
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secreiar)' of Slate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that C0N4MUNITY ACTION

PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965. I further certify that ail fees and documents required by the Secretary of

State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63021

Certificate Number: 0006194067

S&.

O

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. A
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I. Christopher J. Pvles. Chairperson. Board of Directors, hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected officer of Community Action Prooram Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called

and held on March 9. 2023. at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Michael Tabory,

Chief Operating Officer/Deputy Director, Jill Lesmerlses, Chief Fiscal Officer, Steven

Gregoire, Budget Analyst, Christopher J. Pyles, Chairperson, Board of Directors are duly
authorized on behalf of Communitv Action Program Beiknao-Merrimack Counties. Inc. to enter

into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or

departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other

instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her

judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and

effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This

authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further

certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence

that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full

authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any

listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State bf New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 8/28/2023 Signature of Elected Officer
N^me: Christopher J

Title: Chairperson idai

e

ar

s

d of Directors

Rev. 3/9/2023
kiri:CAPBM COA2023

Mailing Address P.O. Box 1016, Concord, NH 03302 Administrative Office 2 Industeial Park Drive, Concord, NH
Phone: 603 225-3295 | 1 800 856-5525 TTY/TDD 1 800 735-2964 Fax: 603 228-1898

Website: capbm.org
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ACORcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

03/17/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS"
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Slreet

Manchester NH 03101

NAME*^^ Susan Sullivan
iaJc'no. E*n: {603)669-3218 T^.noI; (603)645-4331
ADDRESS- "i3nch.cefts@crossagency.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAiC#

INSURER A: Selective Insurance Co. of SC 19259

INSURED

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties Inc.

P.O. Box 1016

Concord NH 03302

INSURER B; ̂ ''^nite State Health Care and Human Services Self-

INSURER c: Federal Ins Co 20281

INSURER D:

INSURER E :

INSURER F ;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 22-23 ALL 23-24 WC/D&O REVISION NUMBER-
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL

INSI?
SUBR

WYD POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

(MM/DD/YYYYI
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

A

X COMMERCIAL GENERALUABILmr

E  OCCUR

32509940 10/01/2022 10/01/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE 5 1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC
DAMAGE TORLNIEO
PREMISES lEfl omjtTBOfjti

5 1.000,000

MEO EXP (Any one person) 5 20.000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY J 1,000.000

GEfTL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY 1 X] jEcf 1 X| LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE J 3,000.000

PRODUCTS • COMPADPAGG 5 3,000,000

5

A

AU1

X

OMOBILE LIABILITY

32509940. 10/01/2022 10/01/2023

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
fEa acrident) $ 1.000,000

ANY AUTO

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

HIRED

AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per person) %

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $

PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPer accident) s

$

A

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LtAB

X OCCUR
r

CLAIMS-MADE 32509940 10/01/2022 10/01/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE J 5.000.000

AGGREGATE 5 5.000.000

DEO X RETENTION S ° S

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS-LIABILITY

ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNEWEXECUTIVE rTTl
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? "
(Mandatory In NH) ' '
if yes. descritte under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A HCH320230000547 (3a.) NH 01/01/2023 01/01/2024

PER OTH-
STATUTE . FR

E.L EACH ACCIDENT 5 1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 5 1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT J 1.000.000

C
Directors & Officers Liability

82471794 04/01/2023 04/01/2024

Limit

Deductible

$1,000,000

$ 5.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space is required)

Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

State of New Hampshire: Department of

Health & Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE PCiLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD25 (2016/03)
©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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BELKNAP-MERKIMACKCOUNTIES.INC.
EMPOWERIMQ C. Ok<M UNITIES SINCE 1Q6S

The Vision of

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties Inc.

An agency that creates opportunities for all people to thrive, a partner in building strong,
resilient communities, to ensure a more equitable society.

The Mission of

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

To assist in reducing poverty, the revilalization of low-income communities, and the
empowerment of low-income families and individuals to reach economic stability.

The Values of

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

We believe all people should be treated with dignity and respect and recognize that structural
race, gender, and other inequities remain barriers that must be addressed.

We believe that our communities have the capacity and moral obligation to ensure that no
one is forced to endure the hardships of poverty.

We believe that everyone can reach their fullest potential with hope, adequate resources, and
opportunities, and we are committed to achieving that vision.

We pledge ourselves to create an environment that pursues innovation and excellence
through multi-sector partnership and collaboration..

Equity • Respect • Commitment ■ Exceiience Hope
Community • Caring • Innovation • Opportunity

The Promise of Community Action

Community Action changes people's lives, embodies the spirit of hope,
improves communities and makes America a better place to live.

We care about the entire community, and we are dedicated to helping people help
themselves and each other.

Helping People. Changing Lives.

^community

PARTNERSHIP

AMERICAS POVERTYFICKTINC NETWORK
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Financial Statements

COMMUN8TY ACTION PROGRAM

BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTBES. iNC

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2022 AND 2021
AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT AND

REPORTS ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
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COMIViUNITV ACTiON PROGRAM BELkNAP - MERRIIVIACK COUNTIES. INC

CONSOLIDATEb FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021
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WfMiWJKO'NORTH f;OK\VAY
Tp the Board of Directors ^ ndVRR • coNCORD
Gommunity Action Prograrn of BelknapTMerrirhack Counties. Inc. strahiam
.Concord,. New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Community Action Program of.
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), \which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as of February 28, .;2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated
statements of activities, functional expenses,.and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated flhanciaj statements present fairly, in all matenal respects, the financial
position of ComfTTJnity Action Rrogram-of Beiknap-Merhrriack Counties, Inc.'as of February 28; 2022
and 2021, and the changes in its liet'assets and Jts.'cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles .generally accepted in the United States of America.-

Basis for Opfnion

We: conducted our audit, in accordance'with'auditing standards generally accepted in the. United States
of America, and the standards applicable tO' financial audits contained, in Government'Audiiihg
St'ahddrds, issued by the Comptroller General bf the United States." Our responsibilities under-those,
.standards, are: further describedgh the Auditor's* Responsibilities for the. Audit.of the Financial
■Statements section of our report., We are required to be independent of Community Action 'Program" of
Belkhap-Merflmack Counties,-Inc;. arid to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirelnentsielating to'oUr audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Respdnsibflities of Management for theFinancial Statements

■Management is responsible: for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated finahcial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,,
arid .for the design, implementation, and rnaintenance.of internal control,relevant to the, preparation and '.
fair presentation of consolidated flhandal statements that are free frorh material misstalement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Ih preparing: the financial statements^ friariagement is required to evaluate Whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, 'that ra ise ;substantial doubt' about Community Actipri Program
of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inp.'s-ability to; continue; a.s a going concern within one year after the.
date that the corisolidaled financial statements are available td be issued.

1
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•Auditors'^Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial,Statements

.Our-'pbjectives"are\to obtain reasoriable assurance abjout Whether, the .consolidated firiancjal statements'
•asia. vyhpie are .free frorn material misstatemenl, whether due tp fraud of error,'and to issue an. auditors*
report that includes .our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is. not absolute
assurarice-and. ithere,fore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
■accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards \j\\\ always ^detect a n^aterial
rhisstatefnent when it.exists. Jhe risk of not detecting a rnaterial nlisstatement Vesuitjng from fraud Js
higher than'for'one resulting from error, as fraud may invol.ve cPllusibri. forgeryj intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstateniehts "are cdnsidered\rriaterial if there is
a'substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by. a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing ah audit in accdfdahce with generally accepted-auditing standards-end ■. Government-
Auditing Standards, .we:-

:Exercise,prpfessl6nal judgment and niaihtain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

.• Identify.and assess'the risks of material missta'tement bf'thd consolidated "financial■Statements,■
' whether due to fraud .or,error", and, design, and'perform, audit 'prodedufes responsive .to those"
risks,. Such procedures include exahnining, on a test basis, evidence 'regarding the arnouhtS;and

•disclosufes in the'consolidated financial statements.

"• ,pbtaih .ah understanding of Internal contfoj relevant to the;auditMn' ofdef to design audit
procedures that'are .appropriate In,the circumstances,, but "not for- the- purpose, of expressing afi
Opinioh. on the effectiveness of Commuhlty Actiph .Program of Belkhap;-Merrimack Counties,
trnc.'s'ihterhai'cohtrok Acxjprdingly, no;such opinion is expressed,.

■ ,« ":|valuate.'the,appropriateness of accountirig■policies used_and the reasonabie.oess,of;significant
faccQuntlrig estimates mad^ management, as .well as evaluate'the bverall .presentation of the
.consolidated financial statements.

,• 'Cbriclude whether, in pur,judgement, there areponditipns oVieventS; considered in the aggregate,-
that raise ^substantial doubt, about Communify" Action-Prograim .of Belknap-Merfirriack pounties,■
;lhG.'s, abjiity to continue as a going concern fori a feasonable pefipd. of time.

We are, required to pdrhmunicate with ;those charged with governance, regarding,, bmopg pthef matters,
the planned scppe and timing of the audit, sighificanteudit findings, and certain internal cohtrpl-related
matters that we identified during the audit.
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Suppfementaryjnfqrmation

Our audit was' cpridueted for the purpose of forming .an opinion on the consolidated financial statement^
as a. whole- Jhe accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
bode of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, ̂ and
Audit Requirem'ents for. Federal'Awards: is presented for purposes of additiona'l analysis and'is not a
required pad of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived'from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records

' used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The Information has been subjected to the
auditing, pfdcedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements-and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying" accounting
and other records used to prepare the. consolidated, financial staternents or to .the consolidated firianclal
staterfiehts themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with, auditing, standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards, is.fairly stated,, in all material respects., in relation: to the consolidated' financial,
staternents as a whole;

Other Reporting Required by Government At/d/f/ng Standards

III accordance with 'Govefnmeiit Auditing Standards, we have also issued ourTepbrt dated Septen^ber 8,
2022; on pur consideration of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack. ebunties,, lnc..'s:
interrial control, over financial reporting arid on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulatiohs, cohtfacts, ahd grant -agreements and other matters,. The purpose of that report is. solely to
•describe the'scope. of our teslihg of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
fesOlts.of that fe'sting, and not to prdvide''an opinion on the effectiveness of Gbmmuhjty Action Program

'Of Belknap-Merrirtiack Counties, Ine's internal control over financial reporting pr-on compliahce. thaf
.fepprtJs an integrai-'part of ah audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards lo:'
'Considering-Comrhun Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, lnc,'s internal .cbntrbl over
!fihahcial reportlhg.and cpmpiiance.

'Concpfd,. New Hanrfpshlre..'
'September 8, 2022
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COMMUNIITy-ACTiOiij BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES JNC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

*  ■ FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

ASSETS

<,CURRENT assets

Cash

Accounts' receivable

Inventory
' Prepaid expenses
Itivestments

Total current assets

PROPERTY
Land, buildings end Jrhprovements"
Equipment, furniture and vehiclesf
Construction In process

Totai propei^ •

L^ss accurhulated depreciation

■Property, net

OTHER ASSCTS
Cash escrdw and reservefunds
Tenant security deposits
Due from related pa'riy

total other assets

TbtAL'^SCTS-

LjABlLlTIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABiLITIES:
CSjrreht'portion oj.nbtes p'ayable'
Lifie of credit .

.Accourits'payabie'

.Accrued expenses;
Refundable advances

'total current liabilities'

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Paycheck Protection Program, loan
Notes payable, less current portiorj shown above
Tenant security deposits

Tota) liabilities;

NCT ASSETS
Without dohoi; roslrlctions

' With donof r.estrlclldns

Total net assets.,;

TdfAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2022

$' TsaMBS
5.244,621

•  271,926
33,928

138,793

7.073.753

7.368.799
6,335.485

41,401

13.745.685

7.528,363

6.217,322

89,468
9.120

65.488

164.076

314,265
154.350

3.635,655
1,086,207
1.537.ad2-:

6,728.279

280,439
620.050

9.120

7.637,888

.5,179,734
637.529

5,817.263

2021^

899.766"
3.762,609

55.895'
.73,709'
127.996'

- 4.920.-1.75

7,1,46.516
6.117.020.

-  ' 16.126

13.281,662

7.639.290'

5.641372

'657437,.
6.88j;

72.318

$ 13.455.151 T0.634;865-

$••' ■213:444^
380;02a-

1.525,832
788,951

1.036,941

3,945.496

1.935i30b
939,697

6.881'

6,827.074

2.758,959
1.348:632,

3.80'7.79'lj

$ 13,455.161 $ 10.634.865

^ .See Notes to^ Cortsolidated financial Statement

'4-
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COMMUNltY ACTION RROGRAIVI BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC;

CONSOLlbAtEb.StATEMENt OF ACTIVITIES

.Without Donor

Restrictions-

With Donor

Restrictions -Total

REVENUES AND OTHER, SUPPORT-
Grant awards-

Rental income

Other funds

Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness
In-kihd
United Way
Interest inconie .

Realized gain on sale of equipment

-$ 36,482,087
135.298

2,526.432

1,615,427
592,136

2,123

74

7,200

$

2,650.984

$ .36,482,087
135,298

5,177,416
1.615.427
5921136

2,123

74,

7,200

Total revenues and other support 411360.777 2,650,984 44,011.761

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

' REStRICTIONS .3,062.287' (3,062,287)

Total .  44.423,064 (411,30.3) 44.0111761

EXPENSES

Program"
Management

40i684,851
1,917,438

- ■  40.084.651
1,917.438

Total experises" .  42,002,289 . 42,002,289

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS .2.4,2pi775 (411;303) 2,009,472

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF yEAR. 2,758,959 1,048,832 _  .3.867.'79.1

NET ASSETS. END OF VeAR
\  ' . it •

$. 5".179,734 $. ■637.52a $  -5,817,263

See Notes to CdnspljdMed Financial Statements

"A'
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•cgn^ilVIUNJTY'ACTiON PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRiiyiACK COUNTIESMNC.

eONSOLiPATEO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

I

Without Donor- With Donoru'
Restrictions Restrictions Total

REVENUES AND.OTHER SUPPORT

' Grant awards $  20,625,325 S - $  ,20,625,325
"Rental Income 123,657 123,657
Other funds 2,375,403 3.733.525 6,108,928
In-kind "490.035 - 490,035
United Way 5,297 i. 5,297
Interest Income 383 - 383
Realized gain on sale of equipment 3,500 - 3,500

Total revenues and other support 23,623.600 3.733,525 '27,357.125

NET ASSETS.RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS 3;047.507 .(3.047i507) .

Total
*

26.67i ,107 .686.618' .  -27.3'57.125

EXPENSES'

program .26,194,346 - 26*.194.346
Management 1.274.50,1 T,274.501

Total expenses -'27.4'68.847 27,468.847

XHANGE IN NEt ASSETS BEFORE GAIN ON
INVESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIP ,(7-97,740). 686,018, (111,722)

GAIN ON iNVESTMENTIN LIMITEb PARTNERSHIP -  ■ 64;397\ _ 64,397

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (733,343)^ '686,01.8,- ;(47.325)

'NET'ASSETS.'BEGINNING OF YEAR 2;9Q2,894, 362.814 3,355,708

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM LIMITED

PARTNERSHIP 499,408. - 499.408.

NET ASSETS. END, OF YEAR S  .2,758,959 :$ .  1,048.832. $  3;807,791

' .See Notes to..Cdnsoli.dated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP ■ IVIERRIIVIACK GbUNTIES. INC.,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

Program Management Total

Salaries and wages' $  7,961,177 $ 1.180;579 $ • 9.141,756
Payroll taxes a'hd benefits 2,296.690, 228,375 2:525.065,
Travel 194,343 9,648 •203.99,1 -
Occupancy 1,267,982 114,418 1;382,4o6"
Program sefyices". 25,639,659 - 25,639.659
Other costs:

'Acccuniirig fees - 74,855 74,855

.Legal fees 15,361 ■15'2 15.513
Supplies 159,844 44-.534', 204,378'
Postage and shipping 49,860 8,731 58.591

' Equipfh.enf rental and maintenance. 1,441 - 1.14V
Printing and publications 28;i33 :2T696 ■ 55;829
Conferencesi.convenlipns and rheetjngs 13,964 - 13,964

.jhterest * "" 29,187 26M^ 56.028
• Insurance 124,-730 43,856 168.586
^Membership fees' ■ •16,276 r' 16.276
Utility and maintenance 88,702 104.142 •192,844

'^CbrhputerserviceS' ' in,990 .iiiiggd
'other 926,679 55,611 980|290

■^Depfeclatiorf 566^151 •r 566.151
In-kind 5.92;982 - 592,982

Total fuhc'tjonalexpenses $  '46,084;851 1,917.438 $' 42,002,289

See Notes to Consolidated Flriahclal Staterhents
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-COMMUNITY A'CTldN.PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES; INC:

CONSOLIDATED -STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
'^FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2021

Program Management Total

SstaHes and Wages
Payroll, taxes and benefits
Travel'
Occupancy _
Program services".
Other .costs;

Accounting fees
Legal fees
Supplies
Postage and shipping
Equipment rental and "rhaintenance
Printing and publications •
Conferences; convenlions.and.meetings
Irilerest

Insurance

Membershiji fees.-
Utiliiy and maintehancs
Computer services
Other

■bepreciallpn'
In-kind

Total fonclJbnal expenses

$  8,423,286 $ 587:382 $. 9.010.668
2,308,290 229,777' 2,538,067

145,104 609 •145,913
1,293,121 .136,322 ■ 1,429,443

11,796,741 - 11T,9^.741

_ 60,013 '80,013
19,604 - ".19,604

165,804 30,710" 196,514
56,087 8,986 65.073-
6,736 - ,6,736

-34,562 3,551 38.113'
632 .. 632

39,595 -22,938. 62,533
123,704 .27:528"' 151,232

10,040 7,019 ; 17,059^
190'.837 '62,549 253,386
47.178 8,660 55,838

584,982 A 68,257" ■ 653i239 '
458,009 - '458,009
■490.034" r. . "490,034

$  ■26,194,346 ■ $ .T274;56-i $ -27,4.68;647

See Notes to Cohsolidateri Financial Statements
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i

CQIVIMUNITyVa6tIQN PROGRAM BELKNAP-IVlERRIMACK COUNtiESJNG.

, CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

CASH FLOVyS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change In net assets'
Adjustments'to reconcile change In het assets to

net cash frorh operating activllies:-
Depreciation

Paycheck Protection pr6gram\ loan forgiveness
Interest on deferred financing costs
Realized gain on sale of equipment

2022

2,009,472

566,151
(1,615.427)

483

(7,200)

2021

(47.325)

458,009

-484

(3;500)
Gain on investment In limited "partnership
becrease.(increase) In current assets:-

Accouhts receivable

Inventory •
Prepaid expenses
Due frorn related party

Decrease (increase) In current liabilities:'
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Refundat}le advances

(1.481.812)
(216,031)

39,781
(65,488)

2,109,823

297,256
500,861

(64,397)

(1,203,458)
(32,979)
(18,723)

356,371

23,890
(47.575)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USEb iN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES, 2,137,869 (579;203)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds frprfi sale "of property •
Additions to property
•Investments'

7,200
(1.141,101)

(10,797)

.3,500

(618;4T0)
(17.918)''

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1.144.698) T632'.828)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACflVITIES
Net Paycheck Protection loan
Net repayments on jine'of credit"
Repayment of long term'debt.

(39.434)
(225,678y
(219,309)

1.935.306'
(169,972)
(199.T52)

NET CASH (USED IN) PRbViDEp BY FINANCING ACTiyiTIES (484,421) 1.566,176

NET INCREASE IN GASH AND RESTRICTED CASH 508,750 -3M,14,5-

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH B*ALANCE,.BEGINNING OF YEAR 965,203 549,026"

CASH AND RESTRICTED.CASH TRANSFERRED FROM
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP; 62,032-

CASH AND REStRICTED CASH BALANCE, END 01: YEAR $  1,473,953 $  . .965,2()3,

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH:
Cash

Cash escrow-arid reserve funds:

$  1.384,485
89,468

$  899,766.
65,437.

$. 1,473,953 $' '965,203

S^ Notes to Consolidated Financial.Statements
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I  • . '

iCgftlMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM CQ^NTIEg.' INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
• FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

iSUPPLEMENTAC DISCLOSURE of cash FLOW INFORMATION:.

Cash paid during the year for InleresI

2022

56.028

2021

62.533,

-SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

rransfer of assets from newly consolidated LP:
A^unls receiyabie S
Prepaid expenses
Property; net
Security deposits

Total transfer of aMOts from newly consolidated LP

Transfer of llabliltles from hcwlyconsolidaied LP:
Accounts payable
Acc^ed expense
Security deposits

' Note payable

Tpt^ transfer of liabilltjas from newty wnsolldalod LP"

Total transfer of partrie'rs' capital from newly cor«olWaled LP
Partnership ca'pital'previpusty rerorded as Investment in related parties

Total transfer of partners' capital from novdy conwildaled LP

2,496
10,827

980.089
8.132

s • s i;001.544

$ -  s 8.82^
7.062^
8,132

_336;3li

s 360.330

$ ;  s 499^08
203.838

s $ . 703.246

See Ndl^' to Cpnsplldoted Financial Statement'o-

MO- -
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;cdMMljivilTY ACTiQN PROGRAM BELKNAP'- MERRItVlACk COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO.CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ■

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

.1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNiFICANT ACCOUNTING' POUGIES

Nature of Organization
■ Commuhity.Action Program. Belknap - Merrirnack Counties, .inc. (the iCrganlzatiori) is,a,
KiewHampshire nonprofit organization that serves nutritiohal, health, living'and support
needs of the low income and elderly clients In the tvyo county service areas, as well as
state wide. These services are provided with the financial support of,various federal,
state, county and local organizations.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the, accounts of Community Action'
.Program Belknap-Merrimack. Counties. Inc., -and the following entities, as-Cpmmunity
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. has both-an econoniic interest and.
control of th.e entities through a rnajority voting interest In their govertiiiig. board.. All
-significant intercompany items and transactions have-been eliminated from basic,
■-cohsolidated financial statements.

■  Sandy, Ledge Limited Partnership
■  CAP BMC Developrnent Corporation

'Basis of Accouritihg
. The^accompartyir^g consolidated financial statenients. have-been prepared on the

accrual basis of accounting in accordanbe with the accounting pririclpjes generally,
•accepted in.the United States of America. ,

■ Basis of Presentation
• Thei.consolidated financial, .statements of thevOrganrzation ;have been prepared In
accordance with. U.S. generally accepted accounting pHnciples,-. which' require the
CDrga'pizatiofi. to report information regarding its financial position apd activities
accofding to, the following net asset classificatiphs:

Net assets without donor restrictions \r\c\ij6e net assets, that are not-
subject to any dpnor-imposed restrictions and may iDerexpended for any
purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Orgariization. These,
net; assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's

• management and'board of director's.

Net assets with donor restrictions include riet assets, subject, to
stipulations irriposed-by donors and grantors. Some donor.restrictions bre
ternporarV, in nature; those I'estfidions will be met by .actions of .the'
•Organization pp' by passage, of time!- Other donor restrictions are perpetual

' in hatu're, whereby the donor has stipulated the -fuhds" be maintained in
perpetuity.

11
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i

CQMMUl^lTV ACti&N BELKNAP - MERRIMACK GOUNTiES^^^

NOTES TO-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS*

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

Dbnpr restricted ^contributlGns are .reported as* increases iri net .assets with, donor
■ restrictions. When restrictions expire, net assets are reclassified fromj net assets with
dbnor restrictions to .net assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statements
of activities.

The Organization'had'net assets with donor restrictions of $637,529 and. $1,048,832 at
February 28,;2Q22'and-2021, respectively. See Note 14.

Income Taxes

'Community-A.ctibrt Program bf Belknap-Merrirtiack Counties, Inc; is organized as, ;a
nonprofit corporation and is exempt from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue
Code Section .501(c)(3), the Internal Revenue Service has determined them to be other
than a private foundatioh.

The Qrgahlzation fijbs informatibn returns in the United States-and th6_State of New
Hannpshire. The Organization Is Subject to examinations, by tax authorities for three
years..

■CAP BMC'Develppme'nt,'Corporation (the Corporation) is taxed as-a "G" Cbfppration'
'undef the Internal Revenue Co.dp, The Corporation accounts for deferred, incbrfie-taxes.
-underMhe assef and ■ liability method. In accbrdance vyith Accounting StandardV
vCbdificatioh No. 740'(ASC 740), ■"Accotyn//ng for Income Taxes";. The objective of this
-methbd is to establish deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary .differences,
'between the financial repbrting basis and the tax basis of the Company's assets a^
liabilities at the enacted tax .fate expected to be in effect when such afnounts .are.
realized qr'seftled. ASC 740 .also requires deferred tax as$ets and liabilities to be shown
separately.: There:are no deferred tax assets or liabilities.. The,Cofpojatioh has'no
■fe.defaj net bperatihg loss carryforwards available at February 28, 2022 and 202:1

.Sandy ,Ledge Liniited ■partnefship is taxed as a partnership. Federal Incbme: taxes are
not .payable',, .or provided by the partnership. Earnings and losses are ihclu'ded in the.
partners' federal inbome tax returns based on their share of partnership earnings.
Partherehjps are required to file, ipcome tax retuitis with the State pf New Kampshife
ahd pay'an inbonie tax at ,the" state's statutory rate;

Accouhtihg-Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), Accounting for. Income Taxes;
'established the fhinlmum. threshold for recognizing, and a system for ■measurihg. .the
benefits: bf tax..return pbsitions in .consolidated financial statements.. The Organization,
has analyzed its; lax position taken on its incortie tax returns for the pa.st thrbp yeare,,
fand hadbpncluded'i.hat ,:nb additional provision for income taxes j.s necessafy In :the
:Pfgahizatibn's/c6hSofi^ finaricial statements.

12
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COMMUNITY. ACTION PROGRAM BELkNAP-IVlERRilVIACK COUNTIES^. INIg

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

Property

Property and equipment is.recorded at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value
at the date of the donation, Assets purchased yyith a useful life in excess of one year
and exceeding $5,0.00 are capitalized unless a lower threshold Is required by certain-
funding sources. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets as follows:,

buildings and imprbvements 40 years
Equipmerit, furniture and vehicles 3-10 years

Use of Estimates

The preparation of'consolidated financial statements in conformity with United States
generally acgepted accounting principles requires rtianagement to make estimates .and
assumptions that affect certaiii reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure:
of contingent assets; and liabilities at the date-of the consolidated fihanclat statements'
and the repbrted'arnpuhts of revenues and expenses during the.reporting period.
Actubl results ,could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivaiehts
For purposes.of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Organization considers
ail liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months oYJesS tb be
cash equivalents'.

The. Organization maintains its cash, in bank deposit accounts, which at times may
exceed .federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced-any losses In
such accounts and believes it is.not exposed to any significant risk with respect to.thes^e^
accounts;.

Contributed ServiciBS . .
Donated services are recognized as contnbutions in accordance with FASB ASC? No.-
958. Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the.services (a),
create'or enhance noh-fihancial assets or (b) require specialized skills, and would
-Othervvise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided'various service's throughout the year that are- not re'cpghized as
contributions In the. consolidated financial statements since the recognition briteria ,under»
FASB AS^C No. 95.8 were not met.

Ih-KInd Donations / Noncash Transactions

Donated facilities; services and supplies are reflected as revenue ,and expense in the,
accprripanylng coriSojIdate.d financlar statements, if the criteria for recognition is mef..
This, represents the; Estimated, fair yalOe .for the service, supplies arid space that the
Organization- might'iricUr under normal operating activities.. The Organization, received
:$592,'136 and $490,035 in donated facilities, services and supplies for the years ended;
February 28, ■2622;'ahd FebyuaV28, 2021, respectively, as follows;

/i3
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- COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP -IVlERRlMACk CQUNtlES. iNC.

NOTES to CONSOLIDATED ,FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

The" Organization receive.s contributed prdfes.sional services that are required to'be.
recorded in accordance .with ,FASEt ASC No. 958. The estimated fair value of these
services was determined to be $18,731 and!$18,937 for the years ended February 28.
2022 and February 28; :202^, respectively.

The Orgarilzatibn also receives contributed food comrhodlties and other_goods that are
required to be recorded iii accordarice.witH FASB ASC No. 958. The estiniated fair
A/alue of these food.'cpmmddities and-goods'was deteririlned to be. $573,405 and
$471 i098 for the years ended February 28, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended February. 28,.2022 and FebruarV 28, 2021 totaled $134,193
,and $14,287, respectively.

inventory
Inventory consists of "weatherization supplies and work in process and is. valued at the
lower of cost or net reallzabie value, us.ing the first-in. first-out method.

Revenue Recognition:

Amounts received, from conditional grants and contracts for specific purposes are
generally recognized a.s income to the extent that related expenses and conditions are'
ihcurred or met. Conditipnat grants received prior to the conditions being rnet are
reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash and other assets are reported
as with dorior restrictiohs- jf they "are received, with donor imposed stipulatiphs that limit
the- use :of the do'nated assets.. Hqwever; if a restriction is fulfilled in the satine period in
which the cx?ntributipn Is receiyed,- the Orgahization reports the support as without donor
.restrictldhs.

Prodrani Service Reverlue

Program seryice reVehue Is recognized as'reyenue When the services dre performed;

Rental Revenue

The Organization derives revenues from the rental of apartrrieht units. Revenues are
recognized as incorhe,, mdrithly, when rents become due, ahd ■control .of the
apartment units is transferred td the lessees. The individual leases, are for a term of
one year and are cancelable by the. tenants.. Control of the leased units is transferred
to, the lessee In an-ampunt that reflects the consideration the Partnership" expects to
be entitled to In exchange for the leased units. The cost incurred to obtain the, lease
will be,expensed as incurred.

14
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAIVI.BELKNAP -'ftflERRIlVlACK COUNTtES: IMC

, NOtES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS'
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY'28. 2022 AND.2021

Functloncil Allocation of Expenses
The"costs of providing the varioUs prggrams and other activities hiive been presented in
the. Coiisolidated .Statements of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain .costs .have"
t?eeri" allocated among the program services and supporting activities benefited.
Expenses are charged to each program based on the direct expenses incurred or
estimated-usage based on tlhie spent on each.program by staff.

Expense Method of allocation
Wages and benefits Time and effort-
Depreciation Actual assets used^by program
All other experises Direct assignment-

2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
The following represents the Orgarilzation's financial assets as Of February 28, -2022
and 2021:

2022 2021

-Finaiicial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated* $  1,384.485 $  899,766
Accounts receivable 5,244,621 3,762."809
Investments 138,793 127,996
Cash reserves 81.143 62;f63
Cash escr'dw •8.325 3:334

Total financial assets .6.857;367' 4.856.008

Less artiounts hot available to be used within one yean.
^Net assets with donor festrictioiis 637;529 1,048.832
Reserve funds. 81.143 62.103'

Arnounts not available within one year 718.672. 1:110.935

-Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

It Is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 .days of operating
expenses which approximates $6,710,000 and $4,360,000, at Febfuary.28, 2022 and
2021., respectively. The Organization has a line of credit with $445,650 and .$219,972,
available to.borrow on at February 28, 2022 and 2021, respectively..
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CQMiVIUNlTY ACTION.PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIIVIAGK CQUNTIES.- INC.

NOTES TO consolidated FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY.28. 2022 AND 2021

3. ACCOUNTSRECEIVABLE
Accounts .receivable are. stated at the amount management expects- to cbllect fi;6m
balances outslahding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after management
has used reasonable colleGtion efforts are written off through a. charge-to the/valuatibn
allowance and a credit to accounts receivable, the^ allowance for. uncollectible accounts
.was. estimated, to be zero at February 28. 2022 and 2021. The.Organization has no
policy for charging Interest .qn overdue accounts.

4. REFUNDABLE ADVANCES
Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized aS
revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are performed'or
incurred: :Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met aggregated
$1,537,802 and '$Y,036,941 as of February 28, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

5: RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization has a qualified contributory pension plan which covers substantially all
employees. The' post of. the plan is charged to programs administered by the,
^.brganizatjon. The expense of the plan for the year ended February 28, 2022 and 2021
totaled'$186.976 and '$193.103, respectively.

6.; LEASED facilities
'Facilities occupied by the Organization for its cornmunity :servi"ce progranns are leased
under various operating leases. The lease terms-range from month to month to twenty'
years.. For,the year ended February 28. 2022 and 2021. the. annual lea.s.e expense for'
' the JeaWd faciiities wa's $544,299 and $542,317; respectively..

iThe apprpximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows:

Year Ended

February 28 Amount

2023 $ 478.248'
;2d24 41:9.395
2025- 245,038
;2026- 88.762

.2627 88.762
Thereafter 688:217

total $- 2.008.422
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COMMdNriY ACTION.PROGRAM BELKNAP-iMERRIMACk COUNTIES^ IMG.

NOTES TO:CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
FOR THE yfeARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

7. ACCt^UED EARNED TIME
The'prganization has accrued a liability for future annual leave time thaf.jts employees,
have earned and vested with the. employees in the amount of $660,158 and $415,580 at
February 28. 2022 and 2021; respectively.

8. BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $200,000 revolving line of credit agreerrient (the llne) with a
■bariK that .Is due oh demand. The line, calls for 'monthly variable interest payrrients based
on the Wall Street Journal Prirhe Rate (3.25% and 4.75% at February'28.' 2022.and
2021, respectively) plus 1%', but not less than 6% per annum. The line is secured by all
the Organization's assetS; There was a balance of $154,350 outstanding.at February
28, 2022.There was no balance outstanding at February 28, 2021.

the. Organization has^.ah additional revolving line of credit agreement (th"e fine) jn/the
arpount of;$40Di000; with.a bank that is due on demand. The line calls for monthly
vaflable interest payments based on the LIBOR rate (2.41% and 2.62% at February i8.
,2022 and 2021 ^.fespe:ctively). The; line is secured by all the Organization's assets!,
There was rib balailce outstanding at February 28, 2022. There was a balance'of
$380,028 outstanding at February 28. 2021.

?. CONCENTRATION OF RISK
For the year "ended February, 28, 2022, apprbxiniately $13,206,000 (30%), and
$15,300,000 (35%), respecfively; of the Organization's total revenue; was received from
the pepartimerit of Health.ahd Human, Services and the Departitient of Treasury, for
.the. year ended. February '28, 2021, approximately' $.11,460,000. .(42%J.! of ihe
■Organizatloh's total revenue was received from the Department of Health and Human
Services . The future scale and nature of the Organization is dependent updh cdhtlnued
support from these departments.

10. LONG TERM DEBT
Long terrh debt;consisted Of the following as of February 28, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

5.50% note paya.bie to a financial Institution in
.  monthly installment^-for principa!, arid interest, of

$1,634 .through 'July,-,2039; The note is secured by
property of the'Orgamza^^^^^ .$ 218,228 •$ , 225,459'
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COMMUNITY'ACTlbN PRQGRAM.BELKNAP-MERRIIVIACK COUNTIES. INC!

NOTES TO:CONSbUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
■ FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

5.75% note payable to, a financial; institution. Jn
monthly installments; for principal and interest -of
$13,912'through July 2023. The note is secured by
property of the Organization for Lakes Region Family
Center.

3.00% note payable to the City of '.Concord for
leasehold improvements in hipnthly installments for
principal and interest of $747 through May 2027. The
note is secured by property of the Organization for the
agency administrative building renoyatiohi

7.00% note payable to abank in monthly; ihstallments
for principarand interest;,of $4,842 through May 2023.
The note is secured by a. first real estate mortgage
and assignment of rents and 'leases; on property
located in Concpfd, New Hampshire Tor Early Head'
Start.

1.00% Paycheck Prptection Program' loan payable to
a bank- in monthly installnients; .for principal "arid'
interest* of $7,5i1 through April 2025. $1i615,427 of
the proceeds received was forgiveri during the year
"ended February !28, 2022-(See Note 11).

Non-Interest bearing- note, payable, by-Sandy. Ledge
Lirriited' Partnership- to ;New. Hampshire. Housing
deferred untii June 1,- 2034 or until the; project is sold
;pr refinanced or surplus cash is available, The note is
-collateralized by a mprtgage on real estate.

Total Ipngrterm debt before uhamortized deferred
financing cost

iUnamortized deferred firia'ricing costs

Less ampuhts due within one year

Long; term portion

219,279 375,827

42,958' 50,507^

116,572 164,553

280,'439. .1,935,300

343.081

1,220,557

(5.803)

1,214,754

314:265

343.081

3,0.94,727

(6.286V

3,0.88,441
213.444
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COMMUNITY ACTION.PROGRAM BELKNAP -^ MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC:

NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of February 2'8, 2022 were asToljows:

■  Year Ending
February 28 .Amount

2023 $ 314.265
2024 236.212
2025; 106,239
2026 32,177

20'27 18.840
Thereafter 512.824

11. PAYCHECK P-ROtECTION PROGRAM
In April 2020, the Organization received loan proceeds In the. amount of $1,935,300
.under the Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP"). Jh'e PPP.'was established as part of
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act^C'CARES Act").

•On September 14, 2021. the Organization received partiarforgiveness- In the amount of
-$1:615,427: The forglveri.proceeds are iriclud.ed in;Incomefo/.the yeardnded February
"28, 2022. The remaining $312,873 has been converted to a loan, due in 44 monthly
•payments of principal and interest at a fate of 1%'. The loah will mature in April 2025.
The outstanding balance on, the PPP loan at'February 28, 2022 is $28b;439. (See,Note
10)..

•12. PROPERTY;AND EQUIPMENT

\Rrbperty and equipment consisted of the following as of February 28, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021.

Land $ 279.340 $ 279.340
'Building and improvements 7.089.'459 6,867,176
EquipmenTand vehicles 6,335.485 6,117,020

'Construction in process 41.401 18.126

16.745,685 ■ 13.281,662
Less accumulated depreciation . 7.528.363 7.639.290

Prbperty and equipment, net' $/ 6.217.322 $ 5.642.372

.Depfeciatjdn ■ expense for the years, ended Febfua^ 28, ;'2£)2_2 and 2021 totaled

.$56'6;f51 ahd $458,009, respectively.
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.COiVlMUNITY ACTiQN ̂ RQGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMAGK CbUNtlES - INC.

■ NOTES TO.CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL Sf ATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND'2021

13. CONTINGENCIES

TheOrganizajion receives grant funding from various sources.. Under thajerms of th^se
agreements', the Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for
purposes specified ..by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures werer fbuhd
not to have been made in .compjiance with the laws .and" regulations, the Organization
rnighl be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been rhade for this
■contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined pr-assessed
•as .of February 28, 2022.

14., NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following .specific .brograrti
rseiyices as of February .28, 2022 and 2021:

2022 20i21

-NH Foo.d Paptry. Coalition $  663' $• ,663
'Senior Center i43;437- '.i42;8'l7
Elder Services 68.427 499.201
Mary Gale 25.629 ■ -

NH Rplary Food Challenge 5,064 ■5,058
Surhmer^lFeedirig. 47,540 60,433
Cphirnqn'Pantry, ' - i;512
Caring Fund 8:792 .8\791

. Agency^ FAP' 27;307' .2:604
Agency' Head Start ;222.258 224,847-
A'gehby -FP/P^I 87;253. 87;387'
Cpmmurlity. Crisis- :35b 350
Other Programs 809 :ii;i69

total net assets with donor restrictions iS' 637:529

20'



DocuSign Envelope ID: F30922F7-12F6-4EE9-94E2-582CD1598E18

COI^IVIUKjlTY ACTION PROG BELKNAP - MERRIIVIACK COUNTIES. IMfi-

NOTES TQ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTiONS
.  The Organizatj6n serves as the rhanagemeht agent for the following orgahizatichs:

Related Party Function

Belmont Elderly Houslrig,'Inc. - ,HUD Property
Epsom Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Alton Housing for.the Eldefly, .Inc. HUD Property
Pembroke Housing for the Elderly, Inc. HUD Property
Newbury Elderly Housing, Inc, HUD Property
Kearsarge Elderly Housing, .Inc. HUD Property
Riverside Housing Corporation HUD Property
Twin Rivers. Community .Corporation Property Development
Ozanam Place," Inc. Transitional Supportive

Services

' TRCC Ho.using Limited Partnership I Low Income Housing tax
Credit Property .

The-services perfprfried'by the Organization included, marketing, .accpontihg, tdnaht
;selectidn (for the HUD properties); HUD cprnpliance (for the HUD properties), .and
mairitenance of property.

Theamqunt due" from the related parties for operating activities (collectively) al February
'28, 2022 and" 2021 was $324,385 and $181,384, respectively,, and is included .in
■accounts receivab[es. Additidnally, during the year ended February'28, .2022, .$65,.488
was loaned .to a- related party and is recorded as an other asset oh the .pqnsoiidated
:staterhentofJnancjal position.

16. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
vCommuhity Action Program Belknap-Merrirnack Counties, Inc. has also invested mPney
relating tp its Fix-it-program in certain mutual funds. The fair value, of the mutual funds
totaled $138,793 and $126,996 at February 28. 2022 and 2021, respectively.

.ASC Topic No.;825-lO. 'Finahciarinstruments,, provides a definition of fair value which
focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in\.generally:
apcepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value'is
a market-based rrieasurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with'FASB" ASC 820,
the Qfpanization may use valuation techniques consistent with market, iricorrie and coSt
.approaches to ' measure fair value.. As a basis for considering, market paHicipant
assumptions nh' fair value; frieasurerriehts, FASB ASC '820 establishes a fair -value'
hierar^y, which, prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives.
the highest 'priprity' to ^Level' 1' measurements and the. lowest ;pri.ority tq. ^LeYel^.3
nieasur;ements; The thtee.'leve^^ of the fair value hierarchy under^'FASB AS,C .'820 are-
.described ̂ asTqlJowq;-
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COMMUNITY AGTiONlPRQGRAIVI BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNXiES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical, investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs, to thd valuation methbdobgy are other than quoted market
prices In active.'markets, which are either,directly or Indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value cah be determined through the- use-of
models or other valuation methodologies.

Leyel/3,r Inputs to the valuation methodology-are unobservable inputs in
situations where there is little or no market activity fpr the asset or liability
and-thd' reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

At February' 28, 2022 and 2iP21, the Organization's investments were classified: as Level 1
and were based on fair yalCie.-

Fair Value Measurements using Significant Observable Inputs (Level 1)

2022 2021

Begirining balance ̂  mutual funds. $ 126,996 $ • 109,078
tofal gains - rriLitual funds 11.797 17.918

Ending balancp mutual funds S 138.793

The carrying ambunl of cash, current assets, other assets and current liabilities',
approximates' fair.value because.6f the sh.ort maturity of those Instruments.

The drganlziatidn also .had''$i;000 .Invested ̂ Partnership, The Lakes Region
Partnership for Public'Mealth, at February 28,. 2021 ■ Puring the year ended February 28.
2022, the Organization is no longer a partner and a final K=1 was received.

.17, OTHER MATTERS'
The impact df.the' novel coronavirus (C0VID-.19) and nieas.ures to. prevent its spread
are affecting the Organization's business. The significance of the irripact of these"
dlsruptioris, including the. e^ent of their adverse Impact on the Organization's financial
and dperational results, will" be dictated'by the length of time that such disruptions,
continue:and. 10 turn. Will depend on the currently unknowable duration of the COVID-IO
pandemic and the Impact of gpvernrhent^l regulations that rtilght bp iniposed in-
response to the pandemic.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP ̂  MERRIIVIACK COUNTIES;iNC.

NOTES TO. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND,2021

18. TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTEREST

.During the. year ended, February 28. 2021^ •Cornmunity Action Program of Belknap-
Merrlrnack Counties, Inc. acquired a partnership interest in a Ibw-income housing
.limited partnership, Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership.

the following is a summary of the assets and liabilities of the partnership at the date of
acquisition.

Date of Transfer 03/01/2020

Cash

Cash reserves

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Property, net
Other assets

3.793
58.239

■2,496
16,827

980,089'
■ 8.132

Total assets

Note, payable
Other liabilities

$  '336,311
24.019

Total liabilities'

Partners' capital

• 360,330

.703^246

Total lia.biliti.es .and partners'
capital $. -1.063.576

19. RECLASSIFICATION
Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year financial statements have been
reciasslfied to enhance the comparability with the presentation of the current year.
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'CdMlviUNlty ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK CQU^^^^^^^

.NOTES tO CONSOLIDAtED FINA^jCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 20^1

20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

:Subsequent events are events or transactions that .occur after the. corisolidated
•statement of financial position date, but before the consolidated finaneiai statements, are
available to be issged. Recognized subsequent events are events or-transactions that,
.provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the consolidated staternent
of financial position date, including the estimates inherent in the pfbcess of preparirig
consolidated financial statements. Non-recognized subsequent events are events that
■provide eviderice about conditions that did not exist at the consolidated statement of
fi nancial -position date, but arose after that date.. Management^has evaluated'
subsequent events through September 8, 2022, the. date the consolidated" finahcial
statements\A/ere.available to be issued. " . '
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COMMUHfTY ACT10W PRQOHAM BBLKH/tf . MgRRtMACK CQUMTIES. IWC..

SCHEDULE OP EXPENOITURES OP.FEOERAL'AWARDS
FOR THE YCAW ENDED FEBWUAHV M. W«

PEOCRAL GRANTOR/

PROGRAM irm'
U3 DEPARTMEMT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SERyiCES

: HEAD START CLUSTER
*  H«M Surt

CRSSAt Head Start'

ARPA - Head Start

Low btcoma Hotna Ertatyjr Atablanca Program
.CV-Low tnooma Homa Energy AtalstatKa Program
Low htcoma Homa Enargy AuJatsrtca Progratrt-WX

CorununHii Sarrlcaa Bibci' Grarti
' CV-CommurRy Setvlees Blodi'GrarM

Soda) Sarvieaa Btock Grati>Homa Oetr'ared 4 Congragata Maal*
Social Sarvtea* Bl^ Grant-Sarriea Link'

Tampdrary AtslilarKa (or Naedy.Pemeea^amSy.Plwninc
Temporary Ai^slartce lor Needy Pamaes-WotlipiM Succaa* i

AOmO CLUSTER

Ttda III. Part B-Sen3or Tranapoitalion.
■ TWe III. PiM C-Homa O(0wad Maala-HOCS
TiOa lit. Part OHoma OaBrarwi Mad*
CV-TUe III. Pan C-Hema Oat^ad i*e»
N5IR

CISLO CARE AND DEVELOPMENT FUND CLUSTER

CNU Care S DarMofMnara Blodt Oram
cm Care'Marrdatary S Matctiing Pundabf the CCOP

MEDICAIDCLUSTST
Madkal/Ktalstanoo Program
MaiScN Aaskianoo Prognm • Vaiamts

Pamfy Plarml^ • SarVkas
Maiemei. ManL S Ear^ OtIUhobd Home ftpgram '
Natiortai Family Caragkrar Support THa 111, Pan E-Sarvtea LM
8pa^ ftogratita for r^rg. TM IV-5arvlaa Link -
StBta HaaOi inaaanea Aaalaianca Piugraiii
' Medkara EfMoPnerd Aaatalanca Piugr» n •

U3 OPPARTMeWT OP AGRtCUt-WRg

Spadsi StwL, Nutnuit l>iogram for Women, Infana i criUrwt'
'S«dor Pannan Market-
ChBd S AduR Cm Food Progm.

bflLO NUTRITION CLUSTER
Sornmar Pood SWvka Program For ChOdran'

/^ISTANCE LiSTtNO
'NUMBER

93.600

83.600.

•83.600

PASS THROUGH QRAJ^R-S NAME

• 93.568;
83.568

'63.568

93S69'

93.569'

93.667
,93.667

93.558.
63558^

93 DU

93.045

63IM5

93:045^
93.053

63575.
63.596'

93.778

9^778

93 317

63.870

83.0S2'

93.048

< 93.324.
93.071

10557,

10576

i0.SS8>

10.559

State'of Haw'HampaMra F
''state bl Naw.Haropthira'
State of Na<v Hsn^sm'

State oi New Hanxanaa'-

' State ol New Hampahira

. Slate e4 New HanvMNra >
Stata ol New'HarrtaNra

, Blaia ol New Harnpahira
'SouthwnNaw Hampsttire SaiVleaa

•State'of Naw.KampahirB
Stata of Now HampaNra

Stata (d Naw Hampattira

Slate of New Hampafa
Slate of New HamptMra

StaM ol New Karraaiiira •
Siata'of New Hampahira

Staia of Ntw Hitipahira
Oatawaya Comnwdly Sarvkaa

Staia of Mew Hampatrira
Sttfa of NawHarrdd^
Stata'ol.New HantpaMra'
• SIM ol Now HamptMra
^ State ol.Naw HampaMra-
State oi Haw Hamoahka'

.State Of New HampeMra
'Stale of Idaw HampsMra
Stiaia of New HampsMra

State of New HamoaMra

ibgNTlhlNO NUWBtR:

0tCH2052-O3O1

'01KETa00822

(XUSTERTOW

a252-S2-520010-lBS70000
02-S3^-5200t'0'24A90CIOO
02-02-0240tb-770S00005(l0587
TOTAt;.

05OQ5O4S-4S00t0-7I4S

05095045<4S0010-7t48

-TOTAL

05«5-4s4B10t0-9255'
200INHS08R-

TpTAL

l"502HKTAI^R . . .
0595-45-450010-81270000

.rOTAl"

''■•17SSNHT35S-

17AANKT3HO
•'ITAANHT3HD
•1056477
CUTTER TOT aL.
NONEPROVtoeO
NONE PR0VK3ED

•CLUSTER TOTAL

9aNWPGoooe4}i-od.

.CUiSTER TOTAL

PPHPPA0ieD63.
XiOMC33596.-
20DtNHaAFC-a2 .
:0(MPD24102
OOSAOQ03<I2-O0,-
2a0tKHMISK^

HHSTOTAL

' 1St54NK703W1003 8 5003
'l$t54NH063YB303 "

'.NONEPROVIOEO

NONEPflOVtOEO

.FEDERALv
. gXPENDITURES

<4520.814
14.665
70.508

6.005,977.

•iSt7.938
.2,923.000

248;4a8
5.690.228

538.251
30,897

569.148

268.060
8596

204.648

. 897'
19,522

.PASSED.THROUGH.
■^O'SUB-ReCIPIEKTS.

20516

'124574
.'9,016
494572

15,030
170.034'

813,126

403542
•M544

463,066

72515-
;32.433'
1M.948

56537
69527
32.045-
28.202
31;9e8
10.707

13.190.684

6IZ0S7
•73.124

'180523

.148.170

Saa~ Notaa la Sehadula of Expaniltturta of Padarai Aavwda
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FEDERAL ORANTDRi

FBOCRAM-nTLg

FOOD DtSTRB^/TION CLUSTER

CoiTwnodtty Suppitmenui Food Program.
Emafpebcy Food AMmaoco P'oa"''"'*^"''"'*Failon
EmefBency Food A»a«Mn» Proyam

COR^ATIOM FOR WATKWAL A COMWUKfTY aERVICea

FOSTER ORANOPAREKTS/SEHtOR COMPANION UUSTER
Sonlor CoovaNon Piagwn '

us DEPARTMENT OF TRAW8PQRTATWN

FormM Orviti (or Rural Araaa-Concord TraroK
FonnulB Crana lor Rural Araaa

TRANSIT SERVICES PROGRAMS CLUSTER
'EnhaneadMobMyoi6anloraSin0.wy0isst>ne»^T .
Enhancad UoMRy o( Sardors S Ind. W/DiMbUaa-Rural TranapoitKiori'
EnhaiKad UoWily el Sardora ft M. W/DlaaeRlaa-Rural Tranapectation'
Enharyad MobSly of Saidora ft M. W/DsabOtlaa-Vokiiiiaar pdvara
Enhvicad Moblity of Sardora ft bv). W/OiaaeUaa

FEDERAL TRANSIT CLUSTER
Biia aM But FadWaa FdtmUa ft'Daeraiionary Programa

us PPPARTMEKT OP HOUSIWQ AND URRAM OEVELOPMEKT-

EmargecKy SobUons Oraim
CV-Ematgerwy SoMtona Grant

CV-Cbso Slate's Program ft Nen-Ensoamata Grant* m Haweb

SiAipordva HotoinB

Condrwum e( Cara Program

ua DEPARTMPWT OF EWEROY

WsM«1zsi)on Asttatanca lor Low Inooma Parson*

USbgPARTM^OPLABOR
Saradr CommunKy Sanin En^loyrnant Program

U S OgPAftTOEWT OF THE TREASURY'

'Cocenavlrus RcM Fund'

Ewargancy Rental AnWanca Program

ASSISTANCE USTtNO

HliWSER-

FEDERAL

Contlnuad >

PASSED THROUGH

PASS TORQUCH GRANTOR'S NAME

10.669 StalaotNaw.HampiNra
loisea State ol New Hampaiara
10.669 Stale of New Hampahlra

BA.0I6

20.600
20.609

20,513'

20.513

20.813

20,613
20.613

14.231

14.231

.14.226

14.^

14.267

6l.(M2

ITZW'

21.019'

21.023
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COIVIIVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAIVI BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

N0TE1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The-accompanying schedule of expenditures pf federal awards (the Schedule)
Includes the federal award activity of Cornmuhity Action Program .Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc. under programs/of the federal government for the year
ended February 28, 2022. The information in this Schedule is presented" in
accordance yvith the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative .Requirements, Cost Principles,, and Audit
Fiequirements ior Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the Operations of Corinmuhity Action Prpgrarn
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., it is not intended to.and does not,preserit the
financial position, chaiiges in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization,

N0TE;2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTiNG POLICIES
Exbenditures reported on the. Schedule are reported pn the accrual basis of
accpuhting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not'
allowable or are limited as to reimbursernent. Negative amounts shown on/the
Schedule represent 'adjustments or credits made in the nornrial course of
'business to. amounts reported as expenditures in prior years,.

NOTE 3^ INDIRECT COST RATE
.  Comrnunity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Couiities, Inp: has elected pot to

use .the ten percent de rniriimis indirect-6pst fate allowed under .the Uniform
Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD COMIVIODITIES AND VEHICLES

Nonrnpnetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed;
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DOVEK • CONCORD

•STRAITIAA.I' ■

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITiNG STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Communi ty Action Prog ram Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord, New Harppshire

.We have audited; in accordance wjth the auditing standards generally accepted in the United'
States, of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing- Standards :issued'. by the Gomptrpller General of the United StateSi the"^ financial
statements of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,. Ipc-. (a nopprb^t
organlzatibnj. which cornprise the statement of financial positiori as of February 28,.2022, and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and-the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated September 8, .2022,

Report ori internal Cohtrot 0\rer Financial Reporting

In planning\and perforrriing bur audit of the financial statements, we .considered ̂ Cbmrhunity,
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack^Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial fepprting
(internal cbhtrbl) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the puipose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but, not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack. Counties, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express ah
opinion on the effectiveness of Commuhily Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, .
Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a coritroj does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or. detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, In internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial staternents will not be prevented,
or detected arid .cofrected pn, a tirnely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiehcy, or ,a
cpriibination of deficiencies, in internal control that Is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important bnbugh to. merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideratTori pf-Internal control was for the Ijrriited purpose described in the first
paragfaph .of thisvsectibn apd was'not designed to identify all deficiencies h' irite.rhal .poritrol.
that rhight; be-material weaknesses'or significant deficiehcles. Given these linnitations;, during .
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■our audit wd did not Jdefitify any'deficiencies in iriternai control that we consider fp' be rhaterial
weaknesses. However;''material! w;eaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were'
not identified.'

.'Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part -of obtaining reasonable/assurance about whether Cornmunity Action Program
Beiknap^Merrirhack Counties. Inc.'s financial statements are free from material rnlsstatemehl;
we perfo.ithed tests of- its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,,
and grant .'agreements, noncbmpliance with which could have a direct and niaterial effect .on
the determination of-the fi nancial statements. However, providing an opinion oh corhpliance
with those: provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results pf our tests disclosed no instances of noncompjiance-.or other
matters that are required to.be reporte,d under Government Auditing Standards:

Purpose of this Report'

The purpose of this report, is.solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
conipiiahce and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion oh the effectiveness of
the Org'ahizatioh's internal cpritrol or^Qn compliance. This report is an Integral'part pf .an audit
performed' in accordance, with Qoyernment Auditing Standards in considering the^
■Organization's■internal control and Cpmpllance. Accordingly, this communlcation isnot suitable■
for any other purpos.e.

'i

Concord, New Hampshire^
September 81 2022 '
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

'To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties, Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opihiph on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Action Program Belknap-Merrirnack. Counties, Inc.'s compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Cornpliance Supplement iUa\
coufd have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Couhties, Inc.'s major federal programs fbr the year ended February 28, 2022.
Comrriunity Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties. Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
;and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, 'Inc. complied, in all
material; respects. With the types of compliance requlrernents referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended Febnjary
:28,20i2?;

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We. conducted pur audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
^contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States;; arid the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uhiforrh Administrative ■ Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal

, Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under Those 'standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
• Couhties, Inc. arid to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical
requiremehts roiating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have pblained is
sufflcjprit and appropriate to, provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major

■^federal • pfpgraim. Our aud does not prpvlde a legal determination of Community Action
iProgram Selknap-Mfriiftiack Counties, Inc.'s coniplianc w'rth the.compiiance requirements
referred to above. *
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RespprisiblUties of Management for Compliance

Mahagement'is respon'sible'f^^^ compliance with the requirements referred to above.'anci for the
-desj0hrim|ijemeh'ta^^^^ -and maintenance of effective Internal contro.l over cornplianc'e with,ttie
■requjremehVs'6f ;iawV, statutes-, regulations, rules, -and provisions of veontracts. ..or rgfaht
agfe'ements^'applicabje' to "Cprtimunity Action Program Belknap-Merfirtiack Counties; Inc.'s
federal programs. ^ . . . . - .

Auditors* Re^onsjbijities for the Audit of Cprnpliance

pur objectives are fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noricpmpli'ance with ■
the Pbrhpiianbe. requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud, or error, ,and
express an opinion'oh Cornmunity Action Program Belknap-Merrtmack: Counties, IncVs
cornpliance based;on our addlt.. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance'but is riot:
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in apcordarice
with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the tJnifofrri
'Guidance vvill always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The-risk of,not detecting;
material noncompliance resulting l^rom fraud is higher than for that resultirig from error, as-
fraud;rhay involve cpllusioh,^forgery; intentional bmissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of iritefriaT cpritrbl. Nonconipliance with the corfipliance requirements referred 'to above. Is
considered material if there is; a substantial likelihood that, individually or, in fhe aggregate,; it
would irifiuerice the judgment made by a reaspnable user of the report o,n cprhpliance about'
Cpmrnunity! KActiori Program Belknap.-Merriniack Cpuntlps, Inc.'s cbrripliance' with the
fequifements of each majpr federal program as a whole.

iln .perforrning an audit: in-pccordahce;with generally accepted auditing staridaYdsi Goyefhrrient'
AudUing Standards, and.the

®  ■ Exercise ;pf6fessipna and maintain professionaLsk8pti:cisrn throughput ,the.
audit. - .

•  'Identifyand assess the risks of material noncxjmplia'nce, whether due,to.fraud'or error,
■arid'design and perfprrh audit procedures'responsive to those risksVSuch procedures
include-e>^aminirig,' pri ■'a tes^ basis, evidence regarding Cptmmuriity; Actlpri. Pr'ogfam
Belknap-Merrimack Gp'unties, 'Inc.'s. compliance-with the corfipliance requlrerfients.
referred to aboye and performing such other procedures as yve considered'necdssary in
the circumstances;,

^  f

• Obtain an uriderstanding pf Community Action Progranh Belknap-iyiemmack-Counties,■
IricvS: Jnterhal dontfol .over compliance, relevant to the audit Jn order to;d.eVign audit
pr'ocedures 'that are^apprppriate in the circumstances and to test and feport-ori ihternai
cpntrpi over cornpliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but riot fprthe-
pUriDoSe^ of expressing an opiriioii on the effectiveness pf Cbmmuriity Action Program
[gelkriap-Mefrini Inc.'s internal control •oyeV compliance^/Accordingly,, nb
Such'Qpiriipri;ls'expressed. ^

-We are required to cPmrriunicate with those charged with governance regarding, .among oth'er
mattefs^'lhejplariried scppe -.and timing rof the 'audit and' any significarii deficiencies, arid
m^ateribi Weakhe'ssOs^ obntroj oyer corhpliarice that we identified ;d'urlng the audit:'-
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Report ori; Internal Cpntcdl Over Cornpliance

A deficien'cy iir internal contrbl oVer cornpliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow managernent of employees, in the normar.course of
performing, ihetr-asVigned to prevent, or detect and correct,-noncompliance ̂with a
type of compliance requirertiem Of 'a federal program on a timely basis. A material vyeakoess in
internal cpritrol Over cohipllance is a deficiency, -pr combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over confipliance. such .that there Is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type, of cornpliance requirement of a federal program will riot be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in intemal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination" df deficiencies, in internarcontrol
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is^ less severe
than a matefiarweakness in Internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by'thpsei charged with goyernance'.

pur consideration of jnteniarcpiitfbl over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditore' Respdnslbilitiesfor the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to Identify 'all deficiencies- in Internal control over compliance that, might be material
wreaknesses or significant -defidehcles in Internal control over compliance. Given these
limltatipris. during; our audit, we-did no.t identify aiiy deficiencies In internal -bontrol oyef
compliance that we consider to: be material weaknesses, as defined aboye. Howeyer,. material
weaknesses or .significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may.exlst that have
not been Identified: ' .

•k

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing ah opinion on the effeGt|yeness-pf
Intemal control over compliance. Acdprdingly, no such, dplnion is expressed.

The purpose of this report oh Internar control over compliance is solely to desdribe tlie scope^ of
bur testing .of internah control .ovdr compliance and the results of that , testing based'on the
requirements 'Of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for enycpther^
•purpose.

COnco/d, Nevy Hampshire
September 8, 2022
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIIVIACK COUNTIES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

SUMMARY GIF AUDITORS' RESULTS

L the auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on* whether the financial-statemenjs
of Corhmunity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. were prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

2. No significant deficiencies'relating to the. audit of the financial statements are reported in
the independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting andean
Compliance., and other Matters Based on .an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Coverhmeht Auditing Standards. No rnaterial weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncorhpliance material to the financial statements of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Goyerhment Auditing Standards'wpre disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in Internal coritrol over major federal award programs are
reported in the independent Au'dltCrs' RepCrt omCompliance for Each Major Program, and'
On Intechal Control Over Compltaiice Required by/the Uniform- Guidance. No material-
weaknesses are reported,

5. the auditors' report -bn corripkance for the major federal award programs for Cornmunity
Action Program Belkriap-Mer.rimack Counties,. Inc; "expresses an unrhodified opinion'on all
major programs.

6. there were no audit JindihgS .that are requifed; to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR:
section 200.&t6(a).

7.. The programs tested as major programs include:
U.S. Department of HealtKand Hurrlan.Services, Aging, Cluster 93.044, 93.045 and
93.053; U.$. Departni^eht of Jransportatioh, Formula Grants for Rural Areas, 20.509;
U.S. Departrnent of the treasury, Erhergency Rental Assistance Prograrn, 21.023.'

8;. the threshold for.distin'guishing Type A and B prograrfis was $1.223,554:

9. 'Community Action Program Belkhap-Merrimack Qpunties, Inc. was determined to not be a
low-risk auditee-.

FINDINGS - financial STATElyiENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUEStlONED.COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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COMMUNITY-ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-IVIERRIIVIACK COUNTIES. INC.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

'  'MATERIALWEAKNESS

2021-061;

Condition: the financial statements presented to the auditor "at the beginning of fieldwork
included accounts that had not been reconciled accurately or in a timely manner

.'Reqamrnendatioh: The auditors' recommend-that the financial cidse process includes a review
of all significant accounts.

'Current Status: Accounts have been reconciled accurately and in a tinnely manner. Not a
repeated finding in the current year.

'•34'
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Effective 3/9/2023

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERR1A4ACKCOUNTIES, INC. ̂
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chris Pyles, Chairperson
Board member since: 1/14/2021

Sara A. Lewko

Board member since: 2/21/2001

David Croft, Vice Chairperson
Board member since: 5/13/2021

Dennis Martino

Board member since: 2/24/2005

A. Bruce Carri, Treasurer
Board member since: 3/12/2020

Ashley Reed
MS Policy Council Chairperson
Board member since: 5/12/2022

Safiya Wazir, Secretary
Board member since: 11/2/2016 David Siff, Esq.

Board member since: 10/2/2013

Heather Brown

Board member since: 1/15/2009 Tracy Vergason
Board member since: 5/12/2022

Current fiscal year (3/1/23 - 2/29/24) board meetings - 3/9/23, 5/25/23; 9/14/23,11/9/23,1/11/24

klh:CAPBM BCD 3 9 2023
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Jeanne Agri

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE

Versatile and experienced leader with highly developed communicaiion skills: WTitten,-verbal and presentational. Adept
in coaching and mentoring employees and colleagues as evidenced by my selection by the National OtTice of Head .Start to

serve as a mentor for new Head Start Directors. Committed to continuous improvement of activities to ensure they meet

outcome's approved by the board through strategic planning, creating gbal-oriented sy.stems and conformance with all

local, state and federal guidance.

WORK EXPERIENCE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Concord, NH
Chief: Executive Officer 2018-presenl

•  Assures the organization has long-range strategy which makes consistent and timely progress towards meeting
the Agencies overall mission

•  Responsible for the general supervision of all grant awards, ensuring that all statutory, regulatory, and /or
program and financial requirements are met, that generally accepted accounting principles are applied, and
that all program and financial policies and procedures are adhered to.

•  Provide leadership in developing programs, organizational structures and financial systems that carry out the
instructions and policies authorized by the Board

•  Establish sound working relationships and cooperative arrangements with community groups, organizations
and all funding sources important to the development of the agency and programs.

•  See that the Board Director is kept fully informed and up to date on the condition of the organization and all
important Federal, State or local requirements impacting on the Agency and/or its programs.

Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH
Education and Nutrition Operations Director . 2016-2018

•  Coordinate, manage and monitor workings of Child Development, Women Infant and Children, and
Literacy Programs, as well as development of an agency wide Two-Generational Approach to services

•  Formulate, improve and implement departmental and organizational policies and procedures to
maximize output. Monitor adherence to rules, regulations, and procedures

•  Assist in the recruitment and placement of required staff; establishment of organizational structure;
delegation of tasks and accountabilities

•  Supervise staff, including establishment of work schedules and monitoring and evaluating performance in
partnership with Executive Director

•  Assist in development of strategic plans for operational activity; implement and manage operational
plans

Director of Child Development Programs 2001-2016
•  Hire, coach and evaluate the performance of Program Managers, Specialists, Coordinators, Center

Directors, Teachers and Head Start support staff

Provide coaching, and learning opportunities for all employees focused on promoting, supporting and
improving early development of children from the prenatal stage to five years of age using research -
based practices

•  Plan and implement strategic interventions with Program Managers, Specialists, Coordinators and
Center Directors for sites needing administrative support and direction
Plan, coordinate and facilitate regular leadership meetings for evaluating and strengthening systems to
maintain the highest quality of services in compliance with Head Start Performance Standards

•  Develop internal structures, systems, and policies supporting major content areas of Head Start program
including education, health, mental health, social services, parent involvement, nutrition, disabilities , and
transportation
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•  • Collaborate with managers and internal fiscal department in the monitoring and control of component
budgets; identification and interpretation of Head Start and community needs; conformance to the
Performance Standards and other regulatory requirements

•  Work in partnership with internal departments to support project goals and meet customerexpectations

•  Establish and maintain relationships and collaborations with public school districts, systems of higher
education, and other community agencies and partners

•  Ensure adequate systems in place to maintain the highest quality of services to children and families in
compliance with Head Start Performance Standards

•  Ensure consistency in service delivery across the program with attention to inclusive practices and
integration of component areas; encourage continuous improvement of systems.

Quality Assurance Director/Co-Director for Child Development Programs 1999-2001

•  Established and managed a robust monitoring, analysis and evaluation system with well-defined results,
milestones, and targets inclusive of Continuous Quality Improvement practices

•  Monitored for quality and compliance at Grantee and Delegate level

•  Worked closely with program Director to review, track and assess monitoring compliance throughout
program operations

•  Developed and implements a written quality assurance and performance evaluation plan in conjunction with
Governing Board, Policy Council

•  Interpreted and evaluated a variety of information to present it in meaningful oral or written form for
varied audiences and provide reliable analysis leading to sound decision-making

Area Manager/Education Manager 1997-1999
•  Supervision of various Child Care sites including direct supervision of Center Directors/Site Managers
•  Coordinate personal and professional development and training plans for staff and ensure teaching staff

progress towards educational requirements as supported by the Performance Standards
•  Documented and administered both positive and negative feedback and utilize Performance

Improvement Plans when warranted.

Child Care Center Director/Site Manager 1995 -1997
•  Supervised, mentored, coach and administered work plans and directives to staff
•  Communicated areas of performance improvement to staff and promote training that reflected individual

needs of staff members and the team as a whole

•  Ensure program compliance with codes of state and local licensing agencies and grant requirements

New Hampshire Technical College, Nashua, NH
Instructor 1995-1997

•  Taught Child Growth & Development and assisted in curriculum development for Early Childhood
Education Program

•  Planned and organized instruction to maximize documented student learning
•  Employed appropriate teaching and learning strategies to communicate subject matter to students

" • Modified, where applicable, instructional methods and strategies to meet diverse student needs

EDUCATION ,

Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH
Master's in Business Administration June 2017

Notre Dame College, Manchester, NH
Bachelors of Arts in Elementary Education 1981



DocuSign Envelope ID; F30922F7.12F6^EE9-94E2-582CD1598E18

i l l Lesmerises

Profile

Experienced and self-motivated Accounting Professional bringing forth over 30 years of

valuable progressive non-profit experience. Looking for an opportunity to use my non-profit

experience to help guide an organization. Areas of experience range from cash managernent,
bank reconciliations, accounts receivable, fixed assets, accounts payable, payroll, audit

preparation, budget preparation, monitoring subrecipients, 403B pension compliance and audit

preparation, employee benefits, and system implementations.

Employment Experience

10/21 - Present

Chief Fiscal Officer. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

CAPBM is a not-for-profit with 25 million in revenue with 11 legal entities. The Agency has over 300
employees and holds 8 million in assets.

Oversee the daily activities of 6 fiscal staff, conduct budget meetings, prepare work papers for annual
audit for agency and 10 housing projects, manage the daily cash flow of the agency and 10 housing
projects, prepare paperwork for. monitorings conducted by various funding sources, and review
accounts payable input, journal entries, accounts receivable input, and monthly billings.

10/17-12/21

Senior Accountant. Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.

Southern New Hampshire Services is a not-for-profit with 49, million in revenue with 30 legal
entities. The Agency has over 400 employees and holds 84 million in assets.

Conduct monthly budget meetings, bill funding sources monthly, prepare work papers for
annual audit, monitor subrecipients, prepare paperwork for monitoring conducted by various
funding sources, review accounts payable input and manage daily workflow, provide backup for
accounts payable and fuel assistance payable positions, prepare surveys for various
governmental agencies, prepare ACA forms, prepare paperwork for 403B annual audit and file
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5500, member and secretary of the 403B Committee, instrumental in getting PaperSave up and

running within the Fiscal Department, prepare work papers for 26 housing programs

11/02-10/17

Staff Accountant. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties. Inc.

At the time of my employment. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties was a not-for-

profit with 20 million in revenue. The Agency had over 479 employees and held over 7 million in assets.

Reconciled 36 bank accounts, billed funding sources monthly, prepared work papers for annual
audit, prepared paperwork for monitoring by various funding sources, prepared and entered

journal entries, reconciled general ledger accounts, reviewed daily accounts payable input,

entered cash receipts in A/R system, provided backup for both payroll and accounts

payable/receivable positions, managed daily workflow, and trained new accounting staff

members

1/00 - 9/02

Account Supervisor (for 2 Companies). Whole Life. Inc.

Whole Life, Inc. is a not-for-profit with 6 million in revenue. The Agency had over 140 employees and

held over 4 million in assets.

Prepared monthly and quarterly reports, yearly budgets, monthly invoices, work papers, and

cost reports, prepared and entered journal entries, reconciled general ledger accounts, and

billed Medicaid

9/98-1/00

Account Receivable Clerk (for 4 Companies). CSN Financial. Inc.

Coded cash receipts, prepared monthly invoices, and prepared accounts receivable and

revenue work papers

5/93-9/98

Assistant Controller. Blosvstems. Inc.

Collected past due accounts receivable both foreign and domestic, provided switchboard relief,

handled petty cash funds, audited salesmen expenses, cut accounts payable checks, prepared

journal entries, performed payroll functions
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3/88-5/93

Business Officer. The Caring Community of Connecticut. Inc.

The Caring Community of Connecticut is a not-for-profit with 18 million in revenue.

Answered phones, filed correspondence, handled petty cash funds, typed correspondence,
coded cash receipts and disbursements, reconciled bank accounts, screened job applicants,
prepared work papers, and participated in administrator on-call program

Educational Background

1996-2000

Bachelor Degree in Accounting, Eastern Connecticut State University
Graduated cum laude

1992-1996

Associate Degree in Accounting, Three Rivers Community Technical College
Named to Dean's list, graduated with high honors

1981-1985

Merrimack Valley High School
Member of National Honor Society, named to Honor Roll for 3 years

Volunteer Work
-■ r

1/17-Present
Director on The Loudon Communications Council
Council is responsible for the distribution of a monthly newspaper to the residents of Loudon
and to maintain the Town of Loudon NH website. Also served as Treasurer of the Council for 2,
years.
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Elizabeth Heyward

Highlights

Fundraising and event planning

Relationship building expert

Deadline-driven

Donor database management

Exceptional multi-tasker

Decisive problem solver

Organized and efficient

Motivated team player

Cross-functional team management

Experience

Coinniunit>' Services Director- August 2017-Present

•  Responsible for the planning, scheduling, implementation and monitoring of the

Fuel and Electric Assistance Programs.

•  Responsible for the development of internal operating procedures for the Fuel and

Electric Assistance Programs compliance with agency and funding requirements

• Responsible for the development of the operating budget for Fuel and Electric

Assistance Programs and area center structure with compliance with agency and

funding source requirements.

•  Responsible for the management, training, supervision and evaluation of Fuel and

Electric Assistance and area center staff.

•  Responsible for compiling and maintaining accurate records of programs

statistics, financial reports, reimbursement requests for agency and various

funding sources.

•  Responsible for developing and implementing outreach plans and centralize client

intake for Fuel and Electric Assistance Programs and other agencies sendees

provided through the area center structure. This will be done in conjunction with

agency program and area center directors.

•  Responsible for securing adequate funding for Fuel and Electric Assistance

Programs and local funding of area center system by local cities and towns.

•  Responsible for providing public relations and information related to Fuel and
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Electric Assistance Programs and area center sendees.

•  . Responsblc for coordinating with other program and area center directors on grant

development by other agency programs and services to meet local community
needs.

•  Responsible for preparing, writing, and organizing proposals and applications for

Fuel and Electric Assistance Programs and area center programs.

•  Responsible for the development and implementation of the information and

referral system used by the area center staff.

•  Responsible for the development and implementation of a community needs

assessment for the Agency and communities seiwed.

• Assist in planning, development and implementation of a data collections

software package with the state and other local CAP agencies.

Director of iVIIssion Advancement- June 2016- July 2017
• Work with the Executive Director and other members of senior leadership to

develop the annual operating budget and identify the financial needs of the
organization that must be met by fundraising;

•  Create and manage the annual development plan that encompasses individual and
institutional giving (foundations, corporation and partners);

•  Track key metrics, where success is measured by growth in contributor numbers,
donor retention and dollars raised;

• Manage the development budget and assist the Executive Director in developing
individual Board member fundraising plans;

• Manage the portfolio of donor prospects, including identifying, researching,
qualifying, cultivating and soliciting gifts from individuals, corporations, and
foundations.

•  Support the Executive Director in major gift cultivation and solicitation efforts
through research, planning, strategy, moves management process.

•  Collaborate with the Executive Director to create individualized stewardship
plans for top contributors, including customized donor reports and donor
recognition.

• Manage the annual giving program, including communications, appeals, and
stewardship.

•  Personally acknowledge contributors arid the impact of their gifts.

•  Manage budget [expenses and revenues] and staff on charitable gaming activities
and placement and sales of vending machines.

•  Effectively position/prepare the Executive Director and Board members for
interactions with major contributors and prospects.
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• - Provide ongoing inspiration, support, resources and training in fundraising to the
Board and'staff.

• Manage the Development and Communications staff for message management
and effective use of the contributor database, moves management and other tools,
including cause-related marketing, cultivation events, etc.

•  Collaborate with other GBS staff in the timely development of written
communications such as annual appeals, direct mail and advertising.

•  Travel to" meet with top contributors in addition to fundraising events and board
meetings.

Director of Community Relations-March 2015-June 2016

•  Treasure of the Private Provider Network in Concord NH.

•  Assist in all fundraising events for Great Bay. Including plan, and execution.

•  Provide active representation at local and state level events and meetings.

•  Stay current and report back on recent state and federal disability news.

•  Increase community awareness of the organization, client services, and business

opportunities,

• Assist with the newsletter, media presentations, marketing materials, and

fundraising events.

• Make presentations at High Schools PTA's, and parent groups.

•  Seek out other venues where groups of parents attend meetings.

• Meet with area Special Education Directors,

• Develop an active Business Advisory Council.

Associate Director of Programs and Services September 2013- March 2015-Great

Bay Services

• Oversees Clinical Services. Supervises Case Managers and Nurses. Oversees
Individual

Service Plans, progress notes and other program documentation. Assures
coordination

between case managers and appropriate program staff.
•  Conducts interdisciplinary staff meetings with case managers, nurses, residential

managers and community center staff to assure coordination of services, client
concerns,

incidents and trends. Facilitates problem solving and is solution focused.
• Oversees Employment, Day and Residential Services. Reviews consumer
progress,

written reports and assures coordination between all assigned rhanagers.
Supervises all

direct care program managers.

•  Is responsible for the hiring and dismissal of all direct care staff.
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•  Responsible for orientation and training of program staff.
• Oversees Residential Managers
• Acts as liaison with funding and regulatory agencies including Developmental

Disabilities of Maine and New Hampshire.
•  . Assists in preparation of annual budget for services. Responsible for contract .
management

and compliance for all services reporting to the position.
• Oversees consumer admission, intake, program management, transfer and
discharge

decisions and procedures.
"• Works in collaboration with and supports the Executive Director on various
projects and

initiatives.

• Assists the Executive Director in matters relating to organizational operations.
Acts as

•  back up for the Executive Director in his/her absence.

•  Coordinates orients and oversees placements of volunteers and interns.

Program Manager for Employment Services October 2011- August 2013-Great Bay
Services

Community Employment Coordinator: Great Bay Services, November 2008- October

2011-

Secretary: Leddy Center.for the Performing Arts, July 2008- March 2009

Marketing and Communications Intern: Amphenol TCS, October 2007- August 2008

Education

• MBA in Leadership: SNHU, Manchester NH
•  Graduate Certificate in Leadership in a Not for Profit: SNHU, Manchester; NH
•  Bachelor of Science in Business Administration , Hesser College, Manchester,

NH

•  Associates Degree in Public Relations, Hesser College, Manchester, NH

Skills and Training

•  Constant Contact- Monthly newsletter.

•  Donor Perfect- Use this for our donor database.

• Attended the CASE Summer Institute in Educational Fundraising

• Microsoft Office- Word, Excel, Publisher, and PowerPoint

•  Board of Directors for Epping Community Church



DocuSign Envelope ID: F30922F7-12F6-4EE9-94E2-582CD1598E18

FREEMAN TOTH

Results-oriented leader with strong background in hiring, training, management and employee development.

Exceptional communication and coaching skills. Effectively motivates employees through consistent feedback,

positive reinforcement and leading by example.

HIGHLIGHTS

- Employee onboarding, development and retention - New product launches and trainings - Team building - Multi
media training program development - Fluent in "'Earn the Right Sales" process -

ACCOMPLISHMENTS

- Successfully managed all functions related to daily operations of a retail organization. Duties include recruiting, intcr\'iewing,

hiring and onboarding, the development and implementation of training programs and performanee management plans that

consistently yield positive results.

- Served in multiple leadership roles, working closely with the executive team to establish organizational goals and maintain

forward momentum for the company.

- Workforce management and scheduling oversight for multiple locations including over 50 associates and managers.

- Orchestrated regular meetings and trainings focused on sales best practices and exceeding company and individual goals

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Community Action Program of Belknap/Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Concord, NH Homeless Outreach & Housing Stabilization Manager 2/2019 to Current

As a Homeless Outreach & Housing Stabilization Manager my responsibilities include Managing a team
responding to referrals from NH 2-1-1 Services with the goal of providing advice, services and assistance to people

experiencing Homelessness or to those whom are at risk Of becoming homeless. A typical day may include Visiting
with local shelters, welfare officers, food pantries and homeless resource centers and homeless people in an effort to

Ingratiate myself white building rapport and trust with the local homeless population.

Waltham Traders/IM Wireless

Saiem, NH District Manager/Trainer 2/2017 to 10/2018

Hire, onboard and manage multiple associates and managers for multiple high-volume locations throughout New England.

Developed and implemented company training programs and assisted with the opening of multiple high-profile locations.

GoWireless LLC/INC

Derry, NH Manager 3/2015 to 1/2017

Directly developed and managed a large team of sales professionals while overseeing daily operations of the location. Served in a

critical role during a company acquisition, contributing to a successful transition with minimal operational disruption.

Bedford, NH Sales Manager/Area Manager 02/2002 to 3/2015

Responsibilities included working in conjunction with the executive team to recruit, interview and hire new consultants and

managers while successfully managing multiple high-volume locations. Specialized in building rapport with customers; eaming

their trust and creating lifelong customers.

EDUCATION - Kccnc State College, Keene, NH



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACKCOUNTIES, INC.
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965

Department of Health and Human Services

Bureau of Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

Continuum of Care - Rural Supportive Services Only, Street Outreach

Name Job Title Salary
% Paid from

this

Contracts

Amount Paid

from this

Contracts

Jeanne Agri Chief Executive Officer $145,916.10 0% 0.00

Jill Lesmerises Chief Fiscal Officer $108,297.00 0% 0.00

Beth Heyward Director of Strategy &
Planning

$79,501.50 0% 0.00

Freeman Toth Housing Stabilization &
Homeless Outreach

Manager

$49,588.50 0% 0.00

To be hired Street Outreach

Specialist
$44,908.50 100% $44,908.50

To be hired Street Outreach

Specialist

$44,908.50 100% . $44,908.50


